
Board of Health

City of Appleton

Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

Council Chambers, 6th Floor7:00 AMWednesday, September 13, 2023

1. Call meeting to order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll call of membership

4. Approval of minutes from previous meeting

23-0812 June 2023 Meeting Minutes

06.14.23_BoardOfHealth_MeetingMinutes.pdfAttachments:

5. Public Hearing/Appearances

6. Action Items

23-1012 Resolution #9-R-23 Mental Health Awareness & Services 
 

#9-R-23 mental health awareness.pdfAttachments:

23-1044 Proposed City Ordinance Update: Chapter 9, Article XVIII. Tattoo and 

Body Piercing Establishments

Article XVIII Tattoo and Body Piercing Establishments Memo.pdf

Article XVIII Tattoo and Body Piercing Establishments Ordinance Change Prosposal.pdf

Attachments:

23-1043 Proposed City Ordinance Update: Chapter 11, Manufactured and Mobile 

Homes and Mobile Home Communities

0884 - BoH Memo.pdf

Chapter 11 Manufactured Homes Ordinance Update.pdf

Attachments:

23-1042 Policy AHD001_Creation and Maintenance of Policies

AHD001_Creation and Maintenance of Policies_09.06.2023.pdfAttachments:

23-1054 Noise Variance: Madison Middle School Construction

2023-2024_Conditional Noise Variance Request_Boldt.pdfAttachments:

Page 1 City of Appleton Printed on 9/7/2023

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22987
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f7a4bbc9-73f4-42cb-9ee8-a8e788ebaeef.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23186
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9b7e2e44-7336-4085-9017-1e472689cbde.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23218
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=159acae6-5e81-4dce-92e6-5cd5f13cbe80.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=aab2117e-6440-4f0d-a48c-4729d94177d5.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23217
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=31aa0b96-fac9-4601-93bc-df7894f59120.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6b5a155b-0cf7-462c-854d-e05874580db2.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23216
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=37d0199b-b675-494d-9c9a-94e75651da2d.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23228
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5a419728-e16e-43e0-90e8-d4586a502628.pdf


September 13, 2023Board of Health Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

7. Information Items

23-1036  Dangerous Animal Declaration

08.22.23_DangerousAnimalDeclaration_Millie.pdfAttachments:

23-1038 August Newsletter

August_2023_Newsletter_0.pdfAttachments:

23-1039 September Newsletter

September_2023_Newsletter_0.pdfAttachments:

23-1041 New Noise Variances

NoiseVariances_BoH_Sept.pdfAttachments:

8. Adjournment

Notice is hereby given that a quorum of the Common Council may be present during 

this meeting, although no Council action will be taken.

Reasonable Accommodations for Persons with Disabilities will be made upon Request 

and if Feasible.

Page 2 City of Appleton Printed on 9/7/2023

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23210
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=20f718d4-445f-4e5f-9e6a-20efbc035688.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23212
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0c529026-2f7e-4d48-b518-01098a57d1ac.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23213
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=bf049cc9-115d-456f-b05c-e2124205a9bd.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23215
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5197483c-700f-4cef-9ae2-a00ba92d36e5.pdf


100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

City of Appleton

Meeting Minutes - Final

Board of Health

7:00 AM Council Chambers, 6th FloorWednesday, June 14, 2023

Call meeting to order1.

Chair Spears calls the meeting to order at 7:00am.

In attendance:

Health Officer, Dr. Charles Sepers

Deputy Health Officer, Sonja Jensen

Robert Ring, DO; Mosaic Family Health

Max Bunchek, MD; Mosaic Family Health

Pledge of Allegiance2.

The Pledge of Allegiance led by Chair Spears.

Roll call of membership3.

Emma Kane arrived at 7:03am.

Spears, Fuchs, Werth, Vogel, Kane, Alderperson Meltzer, Alderperson 

Jones and Mayor Woodford

Present: 8 - 

Approval of minutes from previous meeting4.

23-0671 May 2023 Meeting Minutes

05.10.23_BoardofHealth_MeetingMinutes.pdfAttachments:

Werth moved, seconded by Alderperson Meltzer, that the Minutes be approved. Voice 

Vote. Motion Carried.

approved

Spears, Fuchs, Werth, Vogel, Kane, Alderperson Meltzer, Alderperson 

Jones and Mayor Woodford

Aye: 8 - 

Public Hearing/Appearances5.

None.

Action Items6.

None.

Page 1City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22847
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f33ef981-7d04-44a9-803d-32e31b6f58ef.pdf


June 14, 2023Board of Health Meeting Minutes - Final

Information Items7.

23-0673 Q1 Report

Q1BOH.pdfAttachments:

Speaker: Dr. Charles Sepers, Health Officer and Sonja Jensen, Deputy Health Officer

23-0672 June Newsletter

June_2023_Newsletter_0.pdfAttachments:

Speaker: Dr. Charles Sepers, Health Officer and Emma Kane

23-0675 New Noise Variances

NoiseVariances_BoH_June.pdfAttachments:

Speaker: Dr. Charles Sepers, Health Officer

23-0674 Prohibited Animal Declaration

ProhibitedAnimalDeclaration_SashaGhost.pdfAttachments:

Speaker: Dr. Charles Sepers, Health Officer

Adjournment8.

A motion was made by Lee Marie Vogel, seconded by Alderperson Vered Meltzer, that 

the meeting be adjourned at 7:30am.  The motion carried by the following vote:

approved

Aye: Spears, Fuchs, Werth, Vogel, Kane, Alderperson Meltzer, Alderperson 

Jones and Mayor Woodford

8 - 

Page 2City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22849
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ff2fb2d7-19be-4357-8919-984cfdaf20d4.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22848
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e627e034-a3fe-430d-9da4-31640e95432d.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22851
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=67e2483a-2c03-40c2-b474-8ca8cc379718.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22850
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=41a77a4b-e1d9-4f50-bdae-9f644ddd980d.pdf


Resolu�on #9-R-23 

Resolution Supporting Mental Health Awareness and Services in the City of Appleton 
 

Submitted by: Alderperson Nate Wolff – District 12 
Date: August 16, 2023 
Referred To: Board of Health 

Summary: 

The resolu�on aims to address the urgent need to enhance mental health support and promote overall 
well-being in our community. Recognizing the rising prevalence of mental health disorders and their 
impact on individuals, families, and communi�es, this resolu�on acknowledges the significance of 
priori�zing mental health care as an integral part of public health. 

 

 
WHEREAS, mental health is an essential component of overall health and well-being; and 
 
WHEREAS, mental illness affects individuals of all ages, races, genders, and socio-economic 
backgrounds; and 
 
WHEREAS, mental health disorders can lead to significant personal, social, and economic costs 
for individuals, families, and communities; and 
 
WHEREAS, access to mental health services and support is critical for individuals to lead 
healthy and fulfilling lives; and 
 
WHEREAS, the COVID-19 pandemic has highlighted the importance of mental health and the 
need for increased access to mental health services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city of Appleton recognizes the importance of promoting mental health 
awareness, reducing stigma associated with mental illness, and increasing access to mental 
health services; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Common Council of the City of Appleton, that: 
 
Be it further resolved, the city of Appleton recognizes the importance of mental health and the 
impact of mental illness on individuals, families, and communities. 
 
Be it further resolved, the city of Appleton commits to promoting mental health awareness and 
reducing stigma associated with mental illness through public education campaigns, community 
events, and partnerships with local mental health organizations. 
 
Be it further resolved, the city of Appleton supports increased access to mental health services 
and encourages the expansion of mental health services, including telemedicine and other 
innovative approaches to increase access. 



 
Be it further resolved, the city of Appleton will continue to work collaboratively with local mental 
health organizations and other stakeholders to identify gaps in mental health services and 
develop strategies to address those gaps. 
 
Be it further resolved, the city of Appleton encourages employers and schools to provide mental 
health resources and support to their employees and students. 
 
Be it further resolved, the city of Appleton encourages state and federal policymakers to 
prioritize mental health and increase funding for mental health services and research. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the Common Council is directed to forward a 
copy of this resolution to the Mayor, local mental health organizations, the Wisconsin State 
Legislature, and members of congress in Wisconsin. 



 
 
 
 
 
 

____________________________ 
Members of the Board of Health 

September 1, 2023 
Page | 1 

 

 

 
   
  

 
 
 
 
TO:  Members of the Board of Health 
 
FROM:  Charles E. Sepers, Jr., Health Officer 
  Darrin M. Glad, Assistant City Attorney 
 
DATE:  September 1, 2023 
 
RE:  Chapter 9 Updates Relating to Tattoo and Body Piercing Licenses 
 
 
The Health Department serves as an agent for the Wisconsin Department of Safety and 
Professional Services (DSPS) Body Art Program. As mandated by Wisconsin state law, we are 
responsible for issuing permits, as well as establishing enforcement and appeal mechanisms for 
the permitting process. These responsibilities are outlined in the Municipal Code of the City of 
Appleton, specifically Sections 9-850 to 9-870. 
 
State oversight of tattoo and body piercing businesses is governed by the Wisconsin 
Administrative Code SPS 221. Before the introduction of this state regulation, the City of 
Appleton had its own localized rules to oversee these establishments. Although we have 
updated our local ordinances to align with the state regulations, some legacy language remains. 
This outdated language leads to redundancy and, in certain cases, conflicts with SPS 221. 
 
This need for revision has come to light following a request by a practitioner to operate a 
Temporary Establishment during an event at the Fox Cities Exhibition Center. Under the current 
local code, Temporary Establishments are prohibited. However, Assistant City Attorney Glad 
has advised that this prohibition conflicts with state regulation SPS 221. Consequently, we must 
revise our ordinances to accommodate such licenses. 
 
In addition to this, other amendments aim to remove lingering language from the time when 
we used to issue practitioner licenses along with establishment licenses. It is important to note 
that DSPS now exclusively manages the licensing of all practitioners. 
 
Below, you will find the revised ordinance language as well as details regarding the newly 
introduced license categories and corresponding fees for Temporary Establishments. 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

____________________________ 
Members of the Board of Health 

September 1, 2023 
Page | 2 

 

Environmental Health Fee Schedule Additions 
Activity 

Code Description Fee 
364 Temporary Body Piercing Establishment $ 180.00 
365 Temporary Combined Tattoo and Body Piercing Establishment $ 220.00 
366 Temporary Tattoo Establishment $ 180.00 

 
Thank you for your attention to these critical updates. We strive to maintain a coherent and 
streamlined regulatory framework that aligns with state law. 
 
If you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to get in touch. 
 
Charles E Sepers, Jr, PhD, MPH 
Health Officer | Director Appleton Health Department 
 



��������	
��������������
�������������
�������������
��������������������� !"�#�$%&�'�!' (����)*+�,-./�0-*1234�*42.053�./�1467859*23:�8;:34�2-3�*82-64.2<�6=�>./?06;/.;�@2*2/?823�ABCD?EC�)FGFEHFF+I�*/�*73;:3:�=467�2.73�26�2.73I�=64�2-3�18416/3�6=�43985*2.;9�2*2266./2/I�2*2266�3/2*J5./-73;2/I�J6:<�1.34034/�*;:�J6:<�1.340.;9�3/2*J5./-73;2/�.;�64:34�26�1462302�18J5.0�-3*52-�*;:�/*=32<?���)J+�KLMLN�OMPQLMLQRP�SNTUVMLQRPO�MWRXLNWY��Z55�2*2266�*;:�J6:<�1.340.;9�3/2*J5./-73;2/I�14*02.2.6;34/I�*;:�5.03;/3/�8;:34�2-./�:.[./.6;�/-*55�J3�/8J\302�26�*;:�06715<�].2-�2-3�146[./.6;/�6=�>./?�Z:7.;?�̂6:3I�̂-*1234@30/?�@_@�AFFE�)FGFEHFF+�*/�*73;:3:�=467�2.73�26�2.73I�]-.0-�*43�-343J<�*:6123:�J<�43=343;03�*;:�.;064164*23:�*/�1*42�6=�2-./�:.[./.6;�*42.053?�)̀4:�aGHECI�AEI�EEHbHEC+�����������c�����d"%"�" %(�����eTNPL�73*;/�*�560*5�-3*52-�:31*4273;2�/34[.;9�*�16185*2.6;�943*234�2-*;�=.[3�2-68/*;:�)fIGGG+�]-.0-�./�:3/.9;*23:�J<�2-3�>./06;/.;�g31*4273;2�6=�@*=32<�*;:�_46=3//.6;*5�@34[.03/�8;:34�*�]4.223;�*943373;2�*82-64.h3:�J<�>./?�@2*2?�AFfF?FBf)E+I�26�.//83�5.03;/3/�26�*;:�7*i3�.;[3/2.9*2.6;/�64�.;/1302.6;/�6=�2*2266./2/I�2*2266�3/2*J5./-73;2/I�J6:<�1.34034/�*;:�J6:<�1.340.;9�3/2*J5./-73;2/?�)̀4:�aEHECI�AEI�EEHbHEC+���ePLQONXLQj�73*;/�*�0-37.0*5�2-*2�i.55/�64�.;-.J.2/�2-3�946]2-�6=�649*;./7/�6;�/i.;�64�5.[.;9�2.//83?���eXXSRkNW�73*;/�*00312*J53�26�2-3�:31*4273;2�J*/3:�6;�.2/�:32347.;*2.6;�6=�06;=647*;03�26�2-./�0-*1234�*;:�966:�18J5.0�-3*52-�14*02.03/?���eULRjVMkN�73*;/�*;�*11*4*28/�2-*2�./�439./2343:�*;:�5./23:�].2-�2-3�l3:34*5�l66:�*;:�g489�Z:7.;./24*2.6;�=64�/234.5.h.;9�*42.053/�J<�8/.;9�/8134-3*23:�/23*7�8;:34�143//843?���mRWn�XQNSjNI�*/�*�[34JI�73*;/�26�134=64*23�*;<�-87*;�J6:<�1*42�64�2.//83I�3o0312�*;�3*4I�*;:�26�15*03�*�=643.9;�6J\302�.;�2-3�134=64*2.6;�26�143[3;2�2-3�134=64*2.6;�=467�056/.;9?���mRWn�XQNSjNS�73*;/�*�134/6;�]-6�134=647/�J6:<�1.340.;9�6;�*;62-34�134/6;�*2�2-*2�134/6;p/�43q83/2?���mRWn�XQNSjQPT�73*;/�134=64*2.;9�*;<�-87*;�J6:<�1*42�6=�2.//83I�3o0312�*;�3*4I�*;:�15*0.;9�*�=643.9;�6J\302�.;�2-3�134=64*2.6;�26�143[3;2�2-3�134=64*2.6;�=467�056/.;9?���mRWn�XQNSjQPT�NOLMrVQOstNPL�73*;/�2-3�1347*;3;2�1437./3/�]-343�*�J6:<�1.34034�134=647/�J6:<�1.340.;9�*;:�./�.;�J8/.;3//�=64�7643�2-*;�/3[3;�)u+�06;/3082.[3�:*</�.;�*�5.03;/3�<3*4?����vVNMPQPT�73*;/�2-3�4376[*5�6=�=643.9;�7*234.*5�=467�6J\302/I�;647*55<�*006715./-3:�].2-�:323493;2I�]*234�*;:�730-*;.0*5�*02.6;?���wNXMSLtNPL�73*;/�2-3�>./06;/.;�g31*4273;2�6=�@*=32<�*;:�_46=3//.6;*5�@34[.03/?���wQOQPxNjLMPL�73*;/�*�0-37.0*5�2-*2�./�0*1*J53�6=�:3/246<.;9�:./3*/3H0*8/.;9�649*;./7/�6;�.;*;.7*23�6J\302/I�].2-�2-3�3o0312.6;�6=�J*0234.*5�/1643/?���yNMVLs�zxxQjNS�73*;/�*;:�.;058:3/�2-3�{3*52-�̀==.034�64�*82-64.h3:�*93;2�6=�2-3�{3*52-�̀==.034?���yRL�|MLNS�73*;/�]*234�*2�*�237134*2843�6=�EEG}lI�64�-.9-34?���~RjMV�sNMVLs�WNXMSLtNPL�73*;/�*;�*93;0<�6=�560*5�96[34;73;2�2-*2�2*i3/�*;<�6=�2-3�=647/�/130.=.3:�.;�>./?�@2*2/?�AFfG?GE)B+I�/130.=.0*55<�2-3�̂.2<�6=�Z115326;�{3*52-�g31*4273;2?�



�����������	
��
���
����
������
�
����

���
���
������
����
��������
���
�����������������������������
������

�����
�	
�������������	
��
����
�
����
�
� �����������������������
������������!�"�"�����	
��
����������
������������
��
��������#"$�$�	
��
����%������&�
��%��%�
&���
����������������
�
���������������������
�������
��
����	
�����'(���$�)�$���	
��
���
�
���������
�
�
����	
������
*%��	
��������������������������������

������	�����%

��%���%�

�����%�
&�
%����
������
�	����

��

&�
�����

������������
���

��

���������
�
&���
��
�������	����
�&�%�%

�������
���
��
�����'"�+,��-$��	
��
�������%��������
	�������
���
��

��������
����
�%

&�
%����
�����.��&����

��
&����������
���&�����

%
�������
������%��&������
�����
�������
�����%�&������%.
�������
��
���������� 
��������'���","/��"���	
��
���
�0��������������������
	
�����
���

�����%���%

��������%����� 
���
���
�������	���	%	����12345�6717489��������


%�
��������
�
������

��6729���%��
��
��
*%��
���������������


�������������6:39�	��%�

��������%���%

����������%����� 
������ 
�������
��
����	
���������
���
���
���������
�
����
	�
���%�
�������


%�
��
 
�
��%���
�
*%�����
��
��� 
����0�����������������
	
�����
���

����;�����&��
��� 
��&�	
��
������

������	
���%��
����
�
%����
������
�
0���������
�
��&��������0������������

��
�������
���

&�
���
��������%�
�������
����
�	��0�������%�
�����%�����
�
0������;�������$��<,"$(#����	
��
���
��
�	��
�����
	�


���
�
����������
�������

������������������
���
�
��������
�����%
��


�����	��
������

 
��6=9����

�%�� 
����
���������
�

��
������;�����"$��	
��
����
�
�������������
������
���
�
������������
�
��>
��
*%

�����;�#����?�)�����	
��
����
��������������
	�
���%�
����	�@245�����


������77345����;�#�����A��$��<,"$(#����	
��
���
����
��%������&�
��%��%�
&���
����������������
�
����������
������������
��
���
����	
���������������������
������������	�B�	%	����

 
��6=9����
��
�����
�

��
����6C���DE�7@&�F7&�=�1E�7@9��GHIJ�KLMNOJ��GIPQHJ���6�9�R��,"!�<","�A���S��
������
�������

���������������
�
&��������
��
�
&��������

�����
�	
��
&������������
������

�����
�	
��
����6�9�R����T�?�!�#����<,��!�#�,"��!����U�
��������
��
������
�V
����	
��������
���������
�
��
��������� �
����������
������
���
��	����������������������%�����������
�&��������

�����
�	
��&��������
��
������������
������

�����
�	
��&���
�V
����	
���	�������� 
���	���������������������
*%��
	
�������������
�
������

�����
�	
��������
�V
����	
����
���� ��
�������
���
���������������������
������������ ������
����������W
������.
���
��%����>
��
����&�
��
�������
����
���GHIJ�KLMNXJ��YZ[\]�P̂�H_]̀aJ���S�
�b
�����C����
��	���
��
������

�����
�	
����
*%��
������
����
�

��������
�������
���������
�
�����
���	

������
�
�����
���
	�


&� �
����
��������
�6�����������>
��
�	�

���9&�

�%�
�
�	��

����
�
��	
�
&�
B�	��
�������������%	
��
&������������������
������0
��������
����������

	
���
�


�����������
����
�����
���
���� �
���
�������������
����
��
�%�������
%����%
��


�������� ������GHIJ�KLMNcJ��YHdQP_dZeZfZ]a�P̂�]\H�PQH̀g]P̀J���6�9�h 
�����������	�

����������
	����

��������������
�����
���%������� ��������������
���� �
���
�������
���������
�



������������	���
�����
��
��	����������
������
�
�
�����������
��
��	�����������
����
��
���
��
�����
��
���
����������������
����
��������
������
�
�
���
������
����
����
������
�
�
�����������
������
��
������
�����
����	���������������
��
������
�
�
�������������������
��������
��
��	����������
�����	��	����
�������
������
�
�
���		�

���
�����
��
��������
����	��������������������
��
��	���������������	�����������
�
�
�����������
�������
����
������������
�����
��������������������	��������
��
��	����������
������
�
�
���
���
�����������
�
	���������
��
�
�������������������������������
���������
���
�
���������� !"�#$%&&"��'()) !*+(,�(-�.+(/0*+(,12�!+*0*+(,1"���3������
�
���4���
��5�����
�������
��
�������
������	��
��
�

����
��
���������
��
�
�6��
���
����
�����������������
�����

����������
����
�
�����
��6��������������	����
�
�6��
�������
����������
������
�����
�����������
������	��
��
���
���
���
���4���
��5�����
�	�����
���������
�
�����
�����
�������
�
����
����
�	�������
���
��
	����
�����
���
��������������
���
�6��
�	��
�����������
���������
����������
�6��
����
��
����������������
��
��
�
����
���	������
��
����
������������������
���������
������������������
���
�	����	�
����
������������	��������������
������������7��
���
�	����	�
��
������8
�������
��
������
���

�����
�����
�����
���������
�	�
��
�����������	�����������������
�
����������
���4���
��5�����
���9���4���
��5�����
�	����������������
�
�������
���������������
�������
����
�
��
����
�����������������
���:���������;����<����=>=?������� !1"�#$%&@�A�#$%&#"��B 1 ). C"�� DEFE�EGH�I"��JE'KH�K���� !"�#$%@L"��M , )0//N"��������� ���� O����
�������������
�
����
�

�����
������	��
����������
�������
������	��
��
���	����
����
�

���������������
�������
������	��
���
���
���
�
���
������������������
�	�
���4���
��P���

	��
��������������
�������

��
�������
���
��
�
��������
����
������
����
�

�����
������	��
������>���
�������
������	��
����	����
����
�

��Q��������
�������
������	��
��
�

����
����Q�
���������
��
���������������	�����������
����
��
�������������
������

	��
���������� 9����������
��������������������
	��
����������
�������������
������

	��
���������������������
���	���	�	��
�����������������
	�
���R���=�� 9�����	�����������������������������
���������
��������

�������
���
�������������	��
�����
�����������
��������

��
��
���	�
�����

��
��������

��
������������
������������
������
���������	�
��
����
�����
���
��=ST�����
����
�����������
��
�
����������
������������
��
�
��������
�������
��
�
����U�� 3
�

����
����
��
��������
����
�6��
���
���������
����������
�
�������
��������
�����
�����
�����=V�����
������������W�� 9������
�������
�����
������	��
�
�����������������X�� 3��
��
�
�����������
��
�������
����
�6��
���
���������
�����������

��
������
�
�����
������
������������
�
�������
�����
������
��
�	���������
���
��
�
�������
���
�

����
���������
�������
������	��
�������������
��
�
�����������
��
���
����
�6��
���
�������	������
�������
�����������
���������������������
���
	�
������������
�
���������
����������������
�������������
��������
�
���
����������������
�����
����
��
�������
�

����
���������
������
���
������
��
���
�������
��������������
�
���
�

������	������
�������
�����������
����
�
���
��
��������Y��
�
��
���������������
�����
�����
�������
����������� Z����
���
�
����������
�����������
�
����	���
��������

�
��������
������
���������
��
����������
����6���
������
���������������
	�
����
������
�
��
��������
���
�������
����������
������
�
�������
�������
��
�����
����������
�	��������������
��8�	���
����
���
�����������������
��������������
�
�
�������	����������
�����������
�
��
�
�����������
����



������������	
���
����
�������������������
	������	
�����������
�	��������������������
���	���	
�����
�����
����
������������
��
������������������	������	
��������������
��������	�����	
����
���������������	
��������������
����������������
	��������
�����	
����	������������	
��������������
�����������
��

��������
����
����������������

	�������������������	�����������
���	����������������	������������
�������������������������������
������������������	����	�����
�����	�����������������	
��������������
��������������
������������������
����� �����������
�
�
���������
	�������������
���	���	
�����
�����������	
��������������
������	
����������������������
����
	������������
���	����������������
�����	
���������������
���	���������������
���	���	
�����
���������������������	
��������������
��������������������������
����
���	��������
��������	
�����������������
	��������	
����	����	����	�����������
����������������������
���	����
�������������������
�����������	������
����������
�������
��
����	����	��
��	
�	����������������������	
��	�������	��
��	
�	������!�������������������������	������
������
��	�������
������
��	������������������������	
���
�����������"������

	
������	������
�������	�����������������	
��������������
������������������������#���	��
��	
�	��������		�	
��	��"���

�������������������������
	�������	����������	
��������������
������	������	
���
��������	���	�
�����	��
���	�������������������������	
��������������
�����������������������������������
����	����������	��
��	
�������
���������	���
�����
�������������	��
��	
���������������������
���	���	
���������
�������$	���
����������������������	�	
���������������
�	���
���������������	
�	
������������	��	����	���
���%&'(�)*+,-(���.//01'23145�647�&8329018:;&53�01'&58&��������<=>?@A=B=CDEF���G�� $	���
�	������	��
����������		���������������	
��	������

������������������	
���
	�����������		������	������

����������������������������	
���������	������������
������	
��������������������
	�������	
��������������
��������������
���	���������	�����	
����
���������������	
��������������
�����������������
���	��������������	������	
��������������
����������������

	���������������������
��������H�� $	���
�	�����������������������
�
��
��	������		�������I	
��	������

�����!
�����������
���������
����������		����I	
��	��"���

������������������������ J�
��
	
���������������K�����	�����
	�������������
�
	���L�����	��
�
�����	���
		������������	
���
����
���������������	
�����������
�����
��
������������������
�����������MNO@APD@QC�PCR�A=C=SPT�QU�T@V=CE=F��� �G��W!
�������
��	���
������
	����������
��X������Y���
��������
�������������
�������	
��!��
��	��Z����� ���	����
�����
������������
�������������������
�����
����H��#��������
���	���	
�
�������������������������������X������Y���
������	��	
����	
��Z����� �����	�����
��������������	������
����
���������#��������	
��������
��������������	�����������������	
��������������
���������������������	������������
�������������������������������
������������������	����	�����
�����	�����������������	
��������������
����������������������
����������������	������������	��	
����	
��Z����� �������������	������������������������������
����
��[�������	����	�����
��������	�	�����������������	
��������������
�������W��������������	��
������	��Z����G\�������	������
	��
���
��������������	
��
���
�	�����������X������]���
�
��̂
�
����	��
��	��
������	��Z����G\�������	������
	��
���
��������������	
��
����	�
�����	��
���	����������X������]���
�
���_����
���	�
	����������
�������������������
��	��������	
��
�����	�������
�

�����	�����������	
������̀G"Ga��������	��b���
�����c	�����W�
����	����	��������
����������	����	��
	��������	
�	

�
��������
	���������������
����	��������



��������	
���	��
����	
�������������������������������� ��!"�����#�$�����������%&'�(')*+&��,,-.'��/)0�1213'4��5���'657'�)40�*-.'41'�-112'��32�12)4+�+5�+&-1�)�+-.*'�,5��6-5*)+-541�5,�5��-4)4.'1�5��*)81��'92*)+-49�).+-6-+0�)4��,5��5+&'��955��.)21':���������	
���	��
����	
������������;���<=��>���?���@�����#�A�!$"A��##���������B&'4'6'��+&'�(')*+&��,,-.'��&)1��')154)C*'�5��3�5C)C*'�.)21'�+5�C'*-'6'�+&)+�+&'�3�'/-1'1�5��/'+&5��5,�53'�)+-54�+&'�'5,�.�')+'1�)��)49'��+5�32C*-.�&')*+&��+&'�(')*+&��,,-.'��/)0�-112'�)�+'/35�)�0�5��'��3�5&-C-+-49�.54+-42'��53'�)+-54�5,�+&'�3�'/-1'1�5��)40�3)�+�+&'�'5,�8&-.&�.�')+'1�+&'�-//'�-)+'��)49'��+5�&')*+&:��%&'�(')*+&��,,-.'��/)0�1213'4��)40�*-.'41'�8-+&52+�45+-.'�8&'4'6'��+&'�*-.'41'��3�'/-1'1��+)++55-1+��)4�D5��C5�0�3-'�.'��.541+-+2+'�)4�-//'�-)+'�&')*+&�&)E)��:�����������F���G���!$������H40�3'�154�)99�-'6'��C0�+&'��'4-)*�5,�)�*-.'41'�5��C0�1213'41-54�5���'65.)+-54�5,�)�*-.'41'��'I2-�'��24�'��+&-1�)�+-.*'�C0�+&'�(')*+&��,,-.'��5��C0�)40�+'/35�)�0�1213'41-54�5��)40�5+&'��5��'��/)0�)33')*�)40�12.&�5��'��+5�+&'�J5)���5,�(')*+&�8-+&-4�+&-�+0��KL���)01�5,��'4-)*��1213'41-54�5���'65.)+-54�5,�)�*-.'41'�5��-112)4.'�5,�+&'�5��'�:��%&'�J5)���5,�(')*+&�1&)**�3�56-�'�+&'�)33'**)4+�)�&')�-49�5��5335�+24-+0�,5��&')�-49�54�+&'�/)++'��)4��/)0�'-+&'��1213'4��5��.54+-42'�)40�12.&�5��'��3'4�-49��'+'�/-4)+-54�5,�)33')*:��%&'�J5)���/)0�),,-�/��/5�-,0�5��1'+�)1-�'�+&'�5��'��5,�+&'�(')*+&��,,-.'��),+'��)�&')�-49�54�+&'�/)++'�:��%&'�J5)���5,�(')*+&�1&)**�/)7'�)4��7''3�)��'.5���5,�)**�3�5.''�-491��'*)+'��+5�)40�12.&�)33')*�)4��+&'��'.5���)4��).+-541�5,�+&'�J5)���5,�(')*+&�1&)**�C'�12CM'.+�+5��'6-'8�C0�.'�+-5�)�-�C0�)�.52�+�5,��'.5��������������N�O�������P����Q���� �R��� STUT�TVW�;���X<GYZX�GWS��GWTZGQ[�Q<\]TQ<̂ <WZ�����������P_����̀A?���!$��a!=��!"������#���!�"�"�����������)��%&'�(')*+&��,,-.'��1&)**�&)6'�+&'�358'��+5��'I2-�'�)40�3�).+-+-54'��+5�12C/-+�+5�)�3�).+-.-49�3&01-.-)4�,5��)�3&01-.)*�'b)/-4)+-54�8&'4'6'��+&'�3�).+-+-54'��-1�1213'.+'��5,�&)6-49�)40�-4,'.+-521�5��.54+)9-521��-1')1'�+&)+�/)0�C'�+�)41/-++'��C0�+&'�3�).+-.'�5,�+)++55-49�5��C5�0�3-'�.-49:��%&'�'b3'41'1�5,�+&'�3&01-.)*�'b)/-4)+-54�1&)**�C'�3)-��C0�+&'�3�).+-+-54'�:����C��H40�3�).+-+-54'��45+-,-'��+5�)33')��,5��)�3&01-.)*�'b)/-4)+-54�)1�/)0�C'��'I2-�'��C0�+&'�3�'.'�-49�12C1'.+-54�1&)**�-//'�-)+'*0�.')1'�85�7-49�)1�)�3�).+-+-54'��5,�+)++55�5��C5�0�3-'�.-49�)4��1&)**�45+�C'�)**58'��+5�85�7�+&'�'),+'��)1�)�3�).+-+-54'��5,�+)++55�5��C5�0�3-'�.-49�24+-*�&'�5��1&'�1&)**�&)6'�,-�1+��'.'-6'��)�.'�+-,-.)+'�-4�8�-+-49�,�5/�)�3�).+-.-49�3&01-.-)4�+&)+�&'�5��1&'�-1�45+�-4,*-.+'��8-+&�)40�-4,'.+-521�5��.54+)9-521�.54�-+-54�5���-1')1'�+&)+�/)0�C'�+�)41/-++'��C0�+&'�3�).+-.'�5,�+)++55�5��C5�0�3-'�.-49:���������	
���	��
����	
�����������Pc�O����P����Q���� �R���



������

�������������������������������������	
�����
	����	
����������������������������������

�� ������������� �  !"#!$%�&'�()!�*&+$,�&'�-!+.()��/0�1��� 2)+$.!%�34�5!6!$%7�8$47�-!+.()�9'':;!$�� � <+$$:=� 4�>.+,7�?%%:%(+=(�2:(@�?((&$=!@��AB�C��� ?DED%(�FG7�FHFI��0C�� � 2)+6(!$�JJ�K6,+(!%���L)!�-!+.()�<!6+$("!=(�)+%�#!!=�+=�+E!=(�'&$�()!�M:%;&=%:=�<!6+$("!=(�&'�5+'!(@�+=,�N$&'!%%:&=+.�5!$O:;!%�P<5N5Q� +=D'+;(D$!,�-&"!�2&""D=:(@�.:;!=%!�'&$�%&"!�(:"!4��?%�+=�+E!=(�'&$�<5N57�()!�2:(@�R+%�$!SD:$!,�#@�M:%;&=%:=�.+R�(&�:%%D!�6!$":(%�+=,�;$!+(!�!='&$;!"!=(�+=,�+66!+.�6$&;!,D$!%�'&$�()!�6!$":((:=E�6$&;!%%4��L)!� D=:;:6+.�2&,!�&'�()!�2:(@�&'�?66.!(&=�PT2&,!UQ�;&,:':!,�()!%!�$!SD:$!"!=(%�:=�5!;%4�JJVWF�()$&DE)�JJVXF4��L)!%!�$!SD:$!"!=(%�+$!�%!6+$+(!�'$&"�+=,�:=�+,,:(:&=�(&�()!� +=D'+;(D$!,�+=,� &#:.!�-&"!�2&""D=:(@�Y:;!=%!%�:%%D!,�#@�()!�2:(@�2.!$Z�D=,!$�5!;4�JJVGX�PT2.!$Z[%�Y:;!=%!UQ4��L)!�M:%;&=%:=�<5N5�'+;!,�;&=%:,!$+#.!�;)+..!=E!%�R:()�%(+'':=E�:=�FHFF7�R):;)�:"6+;(!,�:(%�+#:.:(@�(&�%D66&$(�()!�+E!=(�6$&E$+"7�:=;.D,:=E�&$:E:=+(:=E�=!R�;&=($+;(%�#!E:==:=E�:=�8D.@�FHFF�'&$�.&;+.�)!+.()�,!6+$("!=(%7�%(+(!R:,!4�?%�+�$!%D.(7�;&=($+;(%�#!(R!!=�.&;+.�)!+.()�,!6+$("!=(%�+=,�<5N5�+;$&%%�()!�%(+(!�R!$!�+..&R!,�(&�!\6:$!�R:()&D(�'D$()!$�;&=(+;(�'$&"�<5N5�&$�=!R.@�:=:(:+(!,�;&=($+;(%�:=�FHFF4��]=�.+(!�56$:=E�&'�FHFI7�<5N5�)+,�;&=(+;(!,�%&"!�)!+.()�,!6+$("!=(%�()+(�)+,�6$!O:&D%.@�6+$(:;:6+(!,�:=�()!�+E!=(�6$&E$+"�+#&D(�#!E:==:=E�+�=!R�6$&;!%%�'&$�,!.!E+(!,�"D=:;:6+.�+D()&$:(@�'&$�:%%D:=E�()!�5(+(!�.:;!=%!4�K6&=�+�,D!V,:.:E!=;!�$!O:!R�&'�()!�2.!$Z[%�Y:;!=%!�6$&E$+"7�:(�R+%�,!(!$":=!,�()+(�()!$!�:%�=!+$�6!$'!;(�,D6.:;+(:&=�&'�%!$O:;!�#!(R!!=�()!�<5N5�.:;!=%!�+=,�()!�2:(@�&'�?66.!(&=�2.!$Z[%�Y:;!=%!4��L)!�.+%(�;&=($+;(�R:()�<5N5�"+Z:=E�2:(@�-!+.()�<!6+$("!=(�%(+''�+E!=(%�'&$�<5N5�!\6:$!,�&=�8D=!�IH7�FHFF7�+=,�()!$!�:%�=&�;D$$!=(�;&=($+;(D+.�&#.:E+(:&=�:=�6.+;!4��*!;+D%!�2:(@�%(+''�+$!�=&�.&=E!$�+E!=(%�'&$�<5N57�()!$!�:%�=&�.&=E!$�()!�%(+(!�+,":=:%($+(:O!�+D()&$:(@�'&$�()!�-!+.()�<!6+$("!=(�(&�.:;!=%!� +=D'+;(D$!,�-&"!�2&""D=:(:!%�+=,�<5N5�:%�;D$$!=(.@�()!�&=.@�#&,@�()+(�;+=�:%%D!�%D;)�6!$":(%4��<D!�(&�()!�;&=;!$=%�.:%(!,�+#&O!�+=,�+'(!$�,!(+:.!,�2&,!�$!O:!R�



������

�������������������������������������	
�����
	����	
����������������������������������

����� �!"���#��$%& �'(�)**"+ ,�"��"(�-./"(-�0 ��$�% 1$/ �2 +(3�44567���%$89��445:7�*%$1��� �!$. 3����;8%�� %1$% ,�"��"(�0$9"+-0��$��$0(� %�-&.�+0-%"*��+ %�-"&�$�� %�-(< +�(�$*�!�-<� %�44�-&.��� �!"��'(�2+� .80 �$*�= <$("�(3��>� �% ?8"% 1 &�(�*$%�!0 %@'(�A"+ &( �+8%% &�0��"&+08. �+$1<0"-&+ �B"���(�-� �0-B�-&.�0$+-0�$%."&-&+ (,�%80 (�-&.�% 980-�"$&(�C2 +3�445DEF3��>$�-..�-.."�"$&-0�+0-%"����$���"(�% ?8"% 1 &�,�"��"(�-./"(-�0 ��$� G<0"+"�0��(�-� ���-��<%$$*�$*��� �-<<0"+-�0 �=2H2�< %1"��"(�&$B�% ?8"% .3��>� �-.."�"$&-0�0-&98-9 ��$�2 +3�445DEC4F�"(�"&+08. .�"&�-��-+�1 &�3����2 +3�4457IC�FCJF�% * % &+ (�-&�-.1"&"(�%-�"/ �+$. ���-��&$�0$&9 %� G"(�(3��>� �(8�( ?8 &��% <0-+ 1 &��+$."*"+-�"$&�$*���-��"(�0-%9 0��+$&�-"& .�"&�K"(+$&("&�#.1"&"(�%-�"/ �!$. �2H2�!�-<� %�LDM,��8��&$��"&�"�(� &�"% ���($��%$-. %�0-&98-9 �B-(�% ?8"% .3��>� �+0-%"*�"&9�8<.-� .�0-&98-9 ��$�2 +3�4457IC�FCJF�"(�"&+08. .�"&��� �-��-+�1 &�3��A-(�0�,��� �2+� .80 �$*�= <$("�(�0"(�(�< &-0�" (�*$%�/"$0-�"$&(�$*�2 +3�44567�-&.�2 +3�445:M�$*��� �!$. 3��N +-8( ��� % �"(�&$�0$&9 %��� �-�"0"����$� &*$%+ ���$( �( +�"$&(�C.8 ��$���"(� &*$%+ 1 &��% / %���-+@��$�=2H2�8<$&� G<"%-�"$&�$*�$8%�+$&�%-+�F�-&.��� �% +$11 &.-�"$&��$�% 1$/ ���$( �( +�"$&(�*%$1�$8%�!$. ,�"��"(�-./"(-�0 ��$�% 1$/ �2 +3�44567�-&.�2 +3�445:M�-&.��� "%�% (< +�"/ �< &-0�" (�*%$1�2+� .80 �$*�= <$("�(3��O*��$8��-/ �-&��?8 (�"$&(�$%�+$&+ %&(,�<0 -( �.$�&$��� ("�-� ��$�9 ��"&��$8+�3��#��-+�1 &���=PQR!S2RT09�UV�WX�Y����Z�[[����



MANUFACTURED AND MOBILE HOMES AND MANUFACTURED AND MOBILE HOME COMMUNITIES 

Supp. #68                753 

 
Chapter 11 

 
Manufactured and Mobile Homes and Manufactured and Mobile Home Communities 

 
ARTICLE I.  IN GENERAL 
 Purpose of chapter ............................................................................................................................................. 11-1 
 Definitions ......................................................................................................................................................... 11-2 
 Manufactured and mobile home parking fee ..................................................................................................... 11-3 
 Placement of manufactured and mobile homes outside licensed community prohibited; exceptions ............... 11-4 
 Stopping or parking manufactured and mobile home on street ......................................................................... 11-5 
 Damaged or dilapidated manufactured and mobile homes ............................................................................... 11-6 
 Compliance with building regulations .............................................................................................................. 11-7 
 Skirting; storage under manufactured and mobile homes ................................................................................. 11-8 
 Construction or alteration of attachments and accessory structures .................................................................. 11-9 
 Reserved ............................................................................................................................................. 11-10 – 11-25 
 
ARTICLE II.  MANUFACTURED AND MOBILE HOME COMMUNITIES 
 DIVISION 1.  GENERALLY 
  Special use permit for construction or expansion .................................................................................... 11-26 
   Required ....................................................................................................................................... 11-26(a) 
   Application; issuance ................................................................................................................... 11-26(b) 
  Responsibilities of management .............................................................................................................. 11-27 
  Responsibilities of occupants ................................................................................................................... 11-28 
  Reserved ...................................................................................................................................... 11-29 – 11-45 
 DIVISION 2.  LICENSES 
  Manufactured and mobile home community license – required .............................................................. 11-46 
  Manufactured and mobile home community license – term .................................................................... 11-47 
  Manufactured and mobile home community license – fee; bond ............................................................. 11-48 
  Manufactured and mobile home community license – standards of issuance .......................................... 11-49 
  Manufactured and mobile home community license – appeal of denial .................................................. 11-50 
  Manufactured and mobile home community license – revocation or suspension .................................... 11-51 
   
  Reserved ...................................................................................................................................... 11-52 – 11-70 
 DIVISION 3.  DESIGN STANDARDS 
  Applicability of division .......................................................................................................................... 11-71 
  Adoption of state law ............................................................................................................................... 11-72 
  Site and lots; spacing of units................................................................................................................... 11-73 
  Use of city water and sewer service required ........................................................................................... 11-74 
  Specifications for water utility ................................................................................................................. 11-75 
  Fire hydrants ............................................................................................................................................ 11-76 
 
 
 
  Specifications for sewer system ............................................................................................................... 11-77 
  Electrical distribution system ................................................................................................................... 11-78 
  Off-street parking spaces ......................................................................................................................... 11-79 
  Pad; tie-downs .......................................................................................................................................... 11-80 
  Topography of site; exposure to adverse conditions ................................................................................ 11-81 
  Erosion and dust control .......................................................................................................................... 11-82 
  Drainage of surface water ........................................................................................................................ 11-83 
  Lighting .................................................................................................................................................... 11-84 
  Streets generally ....................................................................................................................................... 11-85 
  Marking of streets and parking areas ....................................................................................................... 11-86 
  Numbering of units .................................................................................................................................. 11-87 
  Pedestrian walkways ................................................................................................................................ 11-88 
  Buffer strip ............................................................................................................................................... 11-89 
  Recreation area ......................................................................................................................................... 11-90 



APPLETON CODE 
 

Supp. #68 
 754 

  Signs ......................................................................................................................................................... 11-91 
  Entrances .................................................................................................................................................. 11-92 
  Accessory storage buildings ..................................................................................................................... 11-93 
 
 
 
 
Editor’s Note:  This chapter was repealed and recreated pursuant to Ordinance 79-08, adopted April 16, 2008 and published 
April 21, 2008, becoming effective on April 22, 2008. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cross reference(s) – Buildings and building regulations, ch. 4; numbering system for mobile homes, §4-3; mobile homes 
and parking of trailers restrictions in parks and recreation areas, §13-86. 
State law reference(s) – Mobile homes, W.S.A. §66.058; manufactured housing, W.S.A. §101.90 et seq. 
 
 

 
ARTICLE I.  IN GENERAL 

 
Sec. 11-1.  Purpose of chapter. 
 
 The standards and requirements for manufactured and 
mobile home community design, layout and development 
contained in this chapter are intended to be the minimum 
standards necessary to uphold the public’s health, safety 
and welfare in manufactured and mobile homes and 
manufactured and mobile home communities in the City.  
The express enumeration of such standards shall not 
preclude the Common Council, by resolution or by law, or 
through express written agreement with the manufactured 
and mobile home community owner or developer, from 

imposing modifications or additions to the requirements of 
this chapter.  The Council shall only modify or add to such 
requirements when it is determined that such modifications 
or additions are more likely to achieve the purpose set out 
in this section than the requirements set forth in this 
chapter, and will not conflict with applicable laws of the 
state. 
 
Sec. 11-2.  Definitions. 
 
 The following words, terms and phrases, when used in 
this chapter, shall have the meanings ascribed to them in 
this section, except where the context clearly indicates a 
different meaning: 
 



MANUFACTURED AND MOBILE HOMES AND MANUFACTURED AND MOBILE HOME COMMUNITIES 
 

755 
Supp. #80 

 Accessory structure means all structures constructed on 
a manufactured and mobile home lot apart from the basic 
manufactured and mobile home unit, and shall include 
awnings, cabanas, storage cabinets or sheds, carports, 
windbreaks, attached porches and garages. 
 
 Common area means any area or space designed for 
joint use of tenants occupying the community. 
 
 Community means a manufactured and mobile home 
community. 
 
 Community management means the person or entity 
who owns or has charge, care or control of the community. 
 
 Community street means a private way which affords the 
principal means of access to individual manufactured or 
mobile home lots or auxiliary buildings. 
 
 Driveway means a minor private way used by vehicles 
and pedestrians on a manufactured or mobile home lot or 
used for common access to a small group of lots or 
facilities. 
 
 Health Department license means a license issued by 
the City Health Department under the provisions of this 
chapter. 
 
 License means a written license issued by the City Clerk 
allowing a person to operate and maintain a community 
under the provisions of this chapter and regulations issued 
under this chapter. 
 
 Lot means a parcel of land located in a community for 
the placement of a single manufactured or mobile home 
and the exclusive use of its occupants. 
 
 Lot area means the total area reserved for exclusive use 
of the occupants of a manufactured or mobile home. 
 
 Manufactured and mobile home community means any 
plot or plots of ground upon which three (3) or more 
manufactured homes or mobile homes, occupied for 
dwelling or sleeping purposes, are located, regardless of 
whether a charge is made for the accommodation. 
 
 Manufactured home has the meaning given in W.S.A. 
§101.91(2) and includes foundations and accessory 
structures. 
 
 Mobile home has the meaning given in W.S.A. 
§101.91(10) and includes foundations and accessory 
structures. 
 
 Mobile home stand means that part of an individual lot 
which has been reserved for the placement of one (1) 
manufactured or mobile home unit. 
 

 Municipal permit fee means the fee defined in W.S.A. 
§66.0435(3) 
 
 Permit means any written permit issued by the City in 
accordance with this chapter, including a special use permit 
under the provisions of the zoning regulations. 
 
 Special use permit means a special use permit issued by 
the City permitting the construction, alteration and 
extension of a community under the provisions of this 
chapter and the regulations issued under this chapter. 
 
 Street means the paved or surfaced portion of a roadway 
between two (2) curbs. 
 
 Unit means a manufactured or mobile home. 
(Ord 42-92, §1, 4-15-92, Ord 79-08, §1, 4-22-08) 
Cross reference(s) – Definitions and rules of construction 
generally, §1-2. 
 
Sec. 11-3.  Manufactured and mobile home municipal 

permit fee. 
 
 (a) There is hereby imposed on each owner of a 
nonexempt manufactured or mobile home in the City a 
monthly municipal permit fee determined in accordance 
with W.S.A. §66.0435(3).  It shall be the full and complete 
responsibility of the community licensee to collect the 
proper amount from each unit’s owner or occupant. 
Licensees and owners and occupants of units permitted to 
be located on land outside a community and the owners of 
land on which such homes are parked shall pay such 
municipal permit fees to the Director of Finance on or 
before the tenth (10th) day of the month following the 
month for which such fees are due, in accordance with 
terms of this chapter and such reasonable regulations as the 
Director of Finance may promulgate. Remittances 
delinquent for seven (7) business days beyond the tenth 
(10th) day of the month shall be considered in default and 
shall subject the licensee to revocation of the city license. 
 
 (b) Licensees under this chapter and owners of land on 
which any unit is parked shall inform the assessor of such 
units as are added to their community or lands within five 
(5) days after the arrival of such unit on forms furnished by 
the assessor in accordance with W.S.A. §66.0435(3)(c) and 
(e). 
(Ord 4-93, §1, 1-6-93; Ord 79-08, §1, 4-22-08) 
 
Sec. 11-4.  Placement of manufactured or mobile homes 

outside licensed community prohibited; 
exceptions. 

 
 No person shall park, locate or place any unit outside of 
a licensed community in the City, except for unoccupied 
units parked on the lawfully situated premises of a licensed 
manufactured or mobile home dealer for purpose of sales 
and display, and units parked on the lawfully situated 



APPLETON CODE 
 

 
Supp. #80      756 

premises of a vehicle service business for purposes of 
servicing or making necessary repairs and portable field 
offices for construction projects and structures which meet 
the design requirements of §23-51. 
(Ord 120-95, §1, 11-15-95, Ord 79-08, §1, 4-22-08) 
 
Sec. 11-5.  Stopping or parking manufactured or 

mobile home on street. 
 
 No person shall stop, stand or park a manufactured or 
mobile home in any street, alley or highway within the City 
in violation of W.S.A. chapters 340 and 348 or ordinances 
or regulations of the City. 
(Ord 79-08, §1, 4-22-08) 
 
Sec. 11-6.  Damaged or dilapidated manufactured or 

mobile homes. 
 
 Wrecked, damaged or dilapidated manufactured or 
mobile homes shall not be kept or stored in a community or 
upon any premises in the City.  The building inspector shall 
determine if a unit is damaged or dilapidated to a point 
which makes it unfit for human occupancy.  Such units are 
hereby declared to be a public nuisance.  Whenever the 
inspector so determines, he shall notify the licensee or 
landowner and the owner of the unit in writing that such 
public nuisance exists within the community or on lands 
owned by him, giving the findings upon which his 
determination is based, and shall order such unit removed 
from the community or site or repaired to a safe, sanitary 
and wholesome condition of occupancy within a reasonable 
time. 
(Ord 79-08, §1, 4-22-08) 
 
Sec. 11-7.  Compliance with building regulations. 
 
 All plumbing, building, electrical work, oil or gas 
distribution and alterations or repairs in a community shall 
be in accordance with applicable law and the ordinances 
and regulations of the State and the City and their 
authorized agents. 
(Ord 79-08, §1, 4-22-08) 
 
Sec. 11-8.  Skirting; storage under manufactured or 

mobile homes. 
 
 All manufactured or mobile homes in communities shall 
be skirted within thirty (30) days of placement of the unit 
unless the unit is placed within one (1) foot vertically of the 
stand with soil or other material completely closing such 
space from view and entry by rodents and vermin.  Areas 
enclosed by such skirting shall be maintained and kept free 
of rodents and fire hazards.  All skirts shall be of fire-
resistant material.  Storage under a unit is prohibited. 
(Ord 79-08, §1, 4-22-08) 
 
Sec. 11-9.  Construction or alteration of attachments 

and accessory structures. 

 
 Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, no person 
shall construct, add to or alter any structure, attachment or 
building in a community or on a manufactured or mobile 
home space without written permission from the City 
building inspector.  Construction on or addition or 
alteration to the exterior of a unit shall be of the same type 
of construction and materials as the unit affected.  This 
section shall not apply to the addition of awnings, antennas 
or skirting to units.  Accessory structures on manufactured 
or mobile home spaces shall comply with all setback, side 
yard and rear yard requirements for manufactured or 
mobile home units. 
(Ord 79-08, §1, 4-22-08) 
 
Secs. 11-10 – 11-25.  Reserved. 
 



MANUFACTURED AND MOBILE HOMES AND MANUFACTURED AND MOBILE HOME COMMUNITIES 
 

757 
Supp. #80 

ARTICLE II.  MANUFACTURED AND MOBILE 
HOME COMMUNITIES 

 
DIVISION 1.   GENERALLY 

 
Sec. 11-26.  Special use permit for construction or 

expansion. 
 
 (a) Required.  No person shall construct or expand any 
manufactured and mobile home community without first 
securing a special use permit from the City. 
 
 (b) Application; issuance.  Application for a 
manufactured and mobile home community special use 
permit shall be obtained pursuant to the provisions of the 
Zoning Code.  No such permit shall be issued to applicants 
in arrears on financial obligations of any kind to the City. 
(Ord 79-08, §1, 4-22-08) 
 
Sec. 11-27.  Responsibilities of management. 
 
 (a) In every manufactured and mobile home 
community, there shall be located an office of the attendant 
or person in charge of the community.  A copy of the 
community’s license and of this chapter shall be posted 
therein and the community’s register shall be kept in the 
office at all times. 
 
 (b) The attendant or person in charge and the 
community’s licensee shall operate the community in 
compliance with the chapter and regulations and 
ordinances of the city and state and their agents or officers, 
and shall have the following duties: 
 
  (1) The management shall maintain a register of all 

of the community’s occupants, to be open at all 
times to inspection by state, federal and city 
officers, which shall show the names and 
addresses of all owners and occupants of each 
unit. 

 
  (2) The management shall annually provide the 

Fire, Health and Police Departments with a list 
of persons who can be contacted in the event of 
fire, explosion, severe storm damage or other 
emergency. 

 
  (3) The management shall notify the community’s 

occupants of the provisions of this chapter and 
inform them of their duties and responsibilities, 
and report promptly to the proper authorities 
any violations of this chapter or any violations 
of law which may come to their attention. 

   
  (4) The management shall supervise the placement 

of each unit on its stand, which includes 
securing its stability and installing all utility 
connections. 



APPLETON CODE 
 

 
Supp. #80      758 

  (5) The management shall maintain community 
grounds, buildings and structures free of insect 
and rodent harborage and infestation and 
accumulations of debris which may provide 
rodent harborage or breeding places for flies, 
mosquitoes and other pests. 

 
  (6) The management shall maintain the community 

free from growth of noxious weeds. 
 
  (7) The management shall maintain the community 

free of litter, rubbish, and other flammable 
materials, provide portable fire extinguishers of 
a type approved by the Fire Chief in any 
community building used by the public, and 
cause every area within the community 
designated as a fire lane by the Fire Chief to be 
kept free and clear of obstructions. 

 
  (8) No person shall store LP gas containers under a 

unit.  All containers, full or empty, shall be 
secured in place, and all containers and LP gas 
service shall comply with all Wisconsin laws 
and regulations concerning Liquified Petroleum 
Gas, including Wisconsin Administrative Code 
SPS Chapter 340.. 

 
  (9) The management shall require every unit to be 

provided with solid waste containers as set 
forth in §15-28. 

 
  (10) The management shall provide for the sanitary 

and safe removal and disposal of all refuse and 
garbage.  Removal and disposal of garbage and 
refuse shall be in accordance with the laws of 
the state and the ordinances and regulations of 
the City, including regulations promulgated by 
the Health Officer and the Fire Chief. 

 
  (11) The management shall collect the municipal 

permit fee for each occupied nonexempt unit 
within the community and remit such fees and 
deposits to the Director of Finance as required 
by §11-3. 

 
  (12) The management shall allow inspections of 

community premises and facilities at reasonable 
times by municipal officials and their agents or 
employees. 

 
  (13) In cases where the owner of the community is 

also the owner of a unit and leases the unit to 
occupant, the unit shall be made available for 
inspection at reasonable times by City agents, 
and the owner shall maintain the units in good 
repair and in a clean and sanitary condition. 

(Ord 4-93, §1, 1-6-93; Ord 79-08, §1, 4-22-08) 
 

Cross reference(s) – Citation for violation of certain 
ordinances, §1-17; schedule of deposits for citation, §1-18. 
 
Sec. 11-28.  Responsibilities of occupants. 
 
 (a) Manufactured and mobile home community 
occupants shall comply with all applicable requirements of 
this chapter and regulations issued under this chapter and 
shall maintain their unit’s space, its facilities and 
equipment in good repair and in clean and sanitary 
condition. 
 
 (b) Each owner or occupant of a nonexempt unit within 
a community shall remit to the licensee or authorized 
community management the municipal permit fee as 
required under State Statutes. 
 
 (c) Units shall be parked only on the stands provided 
and shall be placed thereon in accordance with all 
requirements of this chapter. 
 
 (d) No owner or occupant shall conduct in any unit or 
any community any business or engage in any other 
activity which would not be permitted by the use 
regulations of the City Zoning Code. 
 
 (e) No person shall erect or place upon any unit’s space 
any permanent or temporary structure intended to be used 
for dwelling purposes or in connection with any unit, 
except as specifically authorized by this chapter. 
(Ord 79-08, §1, 4-22-08) 
 
Sec. 11-29 – 11-45.  Reserved. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



MANUFACTURED AND MOBILE HOMES AND MANUFACTURED AND MOBILE HOME COMMUNITIES 
 

759 
Supp. #80 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DIVISION 2.  LICENSES* 
 

Sec. 11-46.  Manufactured and mobile home 
community license – required. 

 
 No person shall operate or maintain a manufactured and 
mobile home community within the city without a valid, 
unexpired community license issued by the City Clerk and 
approved by the Common Council. 
(Ord 79-08, §1, 4-22-08) 
Cross reference(s) – Citation for violation of certain 
ordinances, §1-17; schedule of deposits for citation, §1-18. 
 
Sec. 11-47.  Manufactured and mobile home 

community license – term. 
  
 Manufactured and mobile home community licenses 
shall be issued for a fiscal year and shall expire on June 30 
next succeeding the date of issue.  Licenses may be issued 
after July 1 of any year, but no rebate or diminution of the 
fee shall be allowed. 
(Ord 79-08, §1, 4-22-08) 
 
Sec. 11-48.  Manufactured and mobile home 

community license – fee; bond. 
 
 (a) The license fee for a manufactured and mobile home 
community license is one hundred dollars ($100). 
 
 (b) The applicant shall furnish a surety bond in the 
amount of five thousand dollars ($5,000). 
 
Sec. 11-49.  Manufactured and mobile home 

community license – standards of 
issuance. 

 
 Manufactured and mobile home community licenses 
shall be granted subject to the following standards: 
 
  (1) Compliance with state law and local 

ordinances, rules and regulations. Proof of valid 
Manufactured Home Community permit issued 
by the Wisconsin Department of Safety and 
Professional Services is required. 

 
  (2) Compliance with City zoning ordinances and 

procurement of any permits affecting land use 
which may be required. 

 
  (3) Compliance with the applicable ordinances of 

the city, as well as payment of all outstanding 
obligations due the City as certified by reports 
from the Inspections Division, Police, 
Community Development Department, Health, 
Finance and Fire Departments. 

(Ord 79-08, §1, 4-22-08) 
Cross reference(s) – Licenses, permits and business 
regulations, Ch. 9. 



APPLETON CODE 
 

 
Supp. #80      760 

 
 
Sec. 11-50.  Manufactured and mobile home 

community license – appeal of denial. 
 
 If an application for a license under this division is 
recommended for denial, the City Clerk shall forthwith 
notify the applicant by certified mail, return receipt 
requested of the denial and the reason therefore.  The 
notice shall indicate the date and time of the review of the 
denial by the Safety and Licensing Committee and the right 
of the applicant to appear before the Committee.  The 
Safety and Licensing Committee shall hear any person for 
or against granting the license and shall report its 
recommendation to the Common Council, which shall 
grant or deny the license. 
 
Sec. 11-51.  Manufactured and mobile home 

community license – revocation or 
suspension. 

 
 Licenses granted under this division shall be subject to 
revocation or suspension by the Common Council for cause 
in accordance with W.S.A. §66.0435(2)(d).  Cause, as used 
in this section, shall include, but not be limited to: 
 
  (1) Failure or neglect to abide by the requirements 

of this chapter or the laws of regulations of the 
state relating to communities and their 
operation. 

 
  (2) Conviction of any offense under the laws of the 

state or ordinances of the city relating to 
fraudulent or misleading advertising or 
deceptive practices regarding the sale or renting 
of manufactured or mobile home spaces or sale, 
lease or operation of community facilities. 

 
  (3) Operation or maintenance of the community in 

a manner detrimental to the health, safety or 
welfare of occupants or the inhabitants of the 
city, including, but not limited to, repeated 
violations of laws or ordinances related to 
health, sanitation, refuse disposal, fire hazards, 
morals or nuisances. 

(Ord 79-08, §1, 4-22-08) 
 
 
 
Secs. 11-52 – 11-70.  Reserved. 
 

DIVISION 3.  DESIGN STANDARDS 
 

Sec. 11-71.  Applicability of division. 
 
 All new manufactured and mobile home communities or 
additions, or extensions to communities existing on the 
effective date of the ordinance adopting this code of 
ordinances, shall comply with the provisions of this 
division. 
(Ord 79-08, §1, 4-22-08) 
 
Sec. 11-72.  Adoption of state law. 
 
 Wisconsin Administrative Code, chapters SPS 382 and 
SPS 326, are hereby made a part of this chapter and 
incorporated as part of this section by reference as if fully 
set forth in this section, except that such regulations shall 
not be deemed to modify any requirement of this chapter or 
any other applicable law or ordinance of the state or the 
city which is more restrictive. 
(Ord 27-03, §1, 1-21-03; Ord 79-08, §1, 4-22-08; Ord 25-
12, §1, 3-7-12) 
 
Sec. 11-73.  Site and lots; spacing of units. 
 
 The community shall conform to the following 
standards: 
 
  (1) The community shall be located on a site 

having a minimum of twenty (20) acres of land. 
 
  (2) Each space shall have an area of not less than 

four thousand five hundred (4,500) square feet 
and a width of not less than forty-five (45) feet. 

 
  (3) All manufactured or mobile homes shall be 

located on a site so that there shall be at least 
twenty (20) feet of clearance between basic 
units, at least twelve (12) feet of clearance 
between units and rear lot lines, and at least ten 
(10) feet of clearance to side lot lines. 

  
  (4) No manufactured or mobile home unit or 

accessory structure shall be located closer than 
twenty-five (25) feet to any common 
community area, community maintenance 
building or administrative building within the 
community, or to any property line of the 
community. 

 
  (5) Attached accessory structures shall be no closer 

than six (6) feet to side and rear property lines. 
(Ord 79-08, §1, 4-22-08) 
 
Sec. 11-74.  Use of city water and sewer service  

required. 
 
 No manufactured and mobile home community shall be 



MANUFACTURED AND MOBILE HOMES AND MANUFACTURED AND MOBILE HOME COMMUNITIES 
 

761 
Supp. #80 

laid out, constructed or operated without city water supply 
and sanitary sewer service available to the site.  All water 
or sanitary sewer facilities in any unit not connected with 
public water and sewer systems by approved pipe 
connections shall be sealed and their use declared unlawful. 
(Ord 79-08, §1, 4-22-08) 
Cross reference(s) – Utilities, ch. 20. 
 
Sec. 11-75.  Specifications for water utility. 
 
 (a) All water main and water services materials, as well 
as installation, shall meet existing specifications on file 
with the utility for single-family residential areas. 
 
 (b) Depth of mains and services shall be a minimum of 
six (6) feet, with each unit supplied with an independent 
curb box and meter.  In lieu of independent meters, a 
master meter may be installed. 
Cross reference(s) – Water utility, §20.31 et seq. 
 
Sec. 11-76.  Fire hydrants. 
 
 Fire hydrants shall be installed within two hundred fifty 
(250) feet of every manufactured or mobile home stand and 
community building.  Where these standards do not apply 
due to the fact that the community was in existence prior to 
the effective date of the ordinance adopting this Municipal 
Code or the date it was annexed to the City, the Fire Chief 
may order the licensee to install fire hydrants within two 
hundred fifty (250) feet of every manufactured or mobile 
home stand and community building and provide that the 
order be complied with within two (2) years, where in his 
discretion and opinion fire protection cannot otherwise be 
adequately provided. 
(Ord 79-08, §1, 4-22-08) 
Cross reference(s) – Fire prevention and protection, ch. 6; 
water utility, §20.31 et seq. 
 
Sec. 11-77.  Specifications for sewer system. 
 
 All liquid wastes originating at units or service or other 
buildings shall be discharged into a sewer system.  Such 
system shall comply with all provisions of the state code 
and city ordinances relating to plumbing and sanitation.  
Each individual space shall be provided with a three- (3-) 
inch watertight sewer connection protected from damage 
by heating and thawing or parking of the unit, with a 
continuous grade, which is not subject to surface drainage, 
so constructed that it can be closed when not in use and 
sealcapped in such a manner that it can be kept odor-free. 
Cross reference(s) – Sewers and wastewater disposal, §4-
341, §20-66, et seq. 
 
Sec. 11-78.  Electrical distribution system. 
 
 Electrical distribution systems shall be new and all parts 
and installations shall comply with all applicable state and 
local codes as adopted by §4-341. 

(Ord 79-08, §1, 4-22-08) 
Cross reference(s) – Electrical code, §4-311, et seq. 
 
Sec. 11-79.  Off-street parking spaces. 
 
 A minimum of two (2) off-street parking spaces surfaced 
with bituminous concrete or Portland cement concrete 
capable of carrying a gross vehicle weight of three 
thousand (3,000) pounds shall be provided for each 
manufactured and mobile home space for new areas. 
(Ord 79-08, §1, 4-22-08) 
 
Sec. 11-80.  Pad; tie-downs. 
 
 Each manufactured and mobile home stand shall be 
provided with an asphalt or concrete pad, concrete footings, 
or the equivalent, complete with approved tie-downs, 
which shall be connected when the manufactured or mobile 
home is placed upon the lot and shall remain connected 
until the manufactured or mobile home unit is removed 
from the lot, as determined by the Inspections Supervisor, 
to provide for solid footing of the unit. 
(Ord 79-08, §1, 4-22-08) 
 
Sec. 11-81.  Topography of site; exposure to adverse 

conditions. 
 
 The condition of the soil, groundwater level, drainage 
and topography of the site shall not create hazards to the 
property, health or safety of occupants of manufactured or 
mobile home spaces or living unit.  The site shall not be 
exposed to objectionable smoke, noise, odors or other 
adverse influences, and no portion subject to unpredictable 
or sudden flooding, subsidence or erosion shall be used for 
any purpose which would expose persons or property 
within or outside of the community to hazards. 
(Ord 79-08, §1, 4-22-08) 
 
Sec. 11-82.  Erosion and dust control. 
 
 Exposed ground surfaces in all parts of every 
manufactured and mobile home community shall be 
maintained in such a way as to prevent soil erosion and 
eliminate objectionable dust. 
(Ord 79-08, §1, 4-22-08) 
 
Sec. 11-83.  Drainage of surface water. 
 
 The ground surface in all parts of every manufactured 
and mobile home community shall be graded and equipped 
to drain all surface water in a safe, sanitary and efficient 
manner. 
(Ord 79-08, §1, 4-22-08) 



APPLETON CODE 
 

 
Supp. #80      762 

Sec. 11-84.  Lighting. 
 
 All communities shall be furnished with lighting so 
spaced and equipped with luminaries placed at such heights 
as will provide the following average maintained levels of 
illumination for the safe movement of pedestrians and 
vehicles at night: 
 
  (1) All parts of community street systems shall be 

illuminated at an average level of six-tenths 
(0.6) foot-candle, with a minimum of one-tenth 
(0.1) foot-candle. 

 
  (2) Potentially hazardous locations such as major 

community street intersections and steps or 
stepped rams shall be individually illuminated 
with a minimum of three-tenths (0.3) foot-
candle. 

(Ord 79-08, §1, 4-22-08) 
 
Sec. 11-85.  Streets generally. 
 
 All unit spaces shall abut upon a community street.  
Widths of streets shall be in accordance with Wisconsin 
Administrative Code, SPS 326.  All community streets 
shall be constructed in a manner that is consistent with 
standards established by the Department of Public Works. 
(Ord 28-03,§1, 1-21-03; Ord 79-08, §1, 4-22-08; Ord 25-
12, §1, 3-7-12) 
Cross reference(s) – Streets, §16-36 et seq. 
 
Sec. 11-86.  Marking of streets and parking areas. 
 
 Streets shall be clearly marked by signing at appropriate 
corners or intersections.  Signs should be of standard size 
and be reflectorized.  All fire lanes and restricted parking, 
standing or stopping areas should be clearly marked with 
pavement markings and signed according to city ordinance 
or state law. 
 
Sec. 11-87.  Numbering of units. 
 
 Each unit shall have a separate or distinct number for 
ease of identification.  Numbers shall meet the size and 
placement requirements set forth in §4-3. 
(Ord 79-08, §1, 4-22-08) 
Cross reference(s) – Building marking system, §4-3. 
 
Sec. 11-88.  Pedestrian walkways. 
 
 All communities shall be provided with pedestrian walks 
not less than three (3) feet in width between individual 
manufactured and mobile homes, community streets and 
facilities. 
(Ord 79-08, §1, 4-22-08) 
Cross reference(s) – Sidewalks, §16-56 et seq. 
 
Sec. 11-89.  Buffer strip. 

 
 In addition to standard lot setbacks, all manufactured and 
mobile home communities shall have a greenbelt or buffer 
strip not less than fifteen (15) feet wide along all 
boundaries. Unless adequately screened by existing 
vegetative cover, all manufactured and mobile home 
communities shall be provided within such greenbelt or 
buffer strip with a screening of natural growth.  Permanent 
plantings shall be grown and maintained at a height of not 
less than six (6) feet.  Screening or planting requirements 
may be waived or modified by the Common Council if it 
finds that the exterior, architectural appeal, concerns for 
public safety or functional plan of the community, when 
completed, will be materially enhanced by modification or 
elimination of such screen planting requirements. 
(Ord 79-08, §1, 4-22-08) 
 
Sec. 11-90.  Recreation area. 
 
 All manufactured and mobile home communities shall 
contain one (1) or more recreation areas easily accessible to 
all community residents.  Such areas shall be a minimum of 
one-half (½) acre for each fifty (50) spaces.  Recreation 
areas shall be so located as to be free of traffic hazards. 
(Ord 79-08, §1, 4-22-08) 
Cross reference(s) – Parks and recreation, ch 13. 
 
Sec. 11-91.  Signs. 
 
 No signs more than two (2) square feet in area shall be 
erected in manufactured and mobile home communities 
except traffic signs, street signs and markings, signs 
pertaining to the lease, hire or sale of individual units, and 
one (1) community identification sign not more than forty-
eight (48) square feet in area at each community entrance. 
(Ord 79-08, §1, 4-22-08) 
Cross reference(s) – Signs,  §23-500.  
 
Sec. 11-92.  Entrances. 
 
 Entrances to manufactured and mobile home 
communities shall be designed to minimize congestion and 
traffic hazards and allow free movement of traffic on 
adjacent streets. 
(Ord 79-08, §1, 4-22-08) 
Cross reference(s) – Traffic and vehicles, ch. 19 
 
Sec. 11-93.  Accessory storage buildings. 
 
 Accessory storage buildings shall be placed at least three 
(3) feet from the rear line of each lot and not closer than 
three (3) feet to any unit.  Persons or parties not in 
compliance shall be issued a sixty- (60-) day notice to 
properly place the accessory storage buildings or structures 
by the Inspections Division.   
(Ord 176-93, §1, 10-19-93; Ord 125-96, §1, 12-18-96; Ord 
79-08, §1, 4-22-08) 
 



MANUFACTURED AND MOBILE HOMES AND MANUFACTURED AND MOBILE HOME COMMUNITIES 
 

763 
Supp. #80 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(The next page is 813.) 



Appleton Health Department Policies 
 

https://cityofappleton.sharepoint.com/sites/HealthDepartment-Teams/Shared 
Documents/General/Policies/AHD Policies/AHD001_Creation and Maintenance of Policies_09.06.2023.docx 

Title: Creation and Maintenance of Policies 

Policy #: AHD001 

Creation Date: 07.26.2023 Last Approved 
Date:  Reviewed Annually 

Description: This policy describes the system for creating, reviewing, and revising policies. 

PHAB Domain/ 
Standard/ 
Measure (LINK): 

10.2.1 A: Manage operational policies including those related to equity. 

Statutory 
Authority/ 
Evidence Base/ 
Links: 

 

Author(s)/ 
Reviewer(s): 

Charles Sepers, Sonja Jensen, Cassidy Walsh, Eric Maggio, Steve Kihl, Megan 
Ehlert 

Policy Approval Tracking 

Created/ 
Reviewed/ 
Revised Date 

Legal Services 
Approval Date 

Board of 
Health 
Approval Date 

Council 
Approval Date 

Health Officer or 
Designee Signature 
(Name/Title) 

Created 
07.26.2023 09.06.2023    

     

     

 
 

Purpose 
This policy describes the system for creating and reviewing policies. 

Policy 

Creating Policies 

1. Policies created will follow Policy AHD001: Creation and Maintenance of Policies, located within 
the Policies folder.  

2. Staff developing policy will record the new policy information into the Policy and Procedure 
Index located within the Policies folder. This step assigns the policy number.  

https://phaboard.org/wp-content/uploads/Standards-Measures-Initial-Accreditation-Version-2022.pdf
https://phaboard.org/wp-content/uploads/Standards-Measures-Initial-Accreditation-Version-2022.pdf
https://phaboard.org/wp-content/uploads/Standards-Measures-Initial-Accreditation-Version-2022.pdf
https://cityofappleton.sharepoint.com/:f:/s/HealthDepartment-Teams/EgIxinwABiVEqafP3DCaCtgB0QgtrPFM3Ad2NxaUHzVEiQ?e=y5rDMr
https://cityofappleton.sharepoint.com/:f:/s/HealthDepartment-Teams/EgIxinwABiVEqafP3DCaCtgB0QgtrPFM3Ad2NxaUHzVEiQ?e=y5rDMr


Appleton Health Department Policies 
 

https://cityofappleton.sharepoint.com/sites/HealthDepartment-Teams/Shared 
Documents/General/Policies/AHD Policies/AHD001_Creation and Maintenance of Policies_09.06.2023.docx 

3. Policy numbering has two parts: Division Identifier and three-digit number. Each policy name 
begins with the division identifier followed by the three-digit number assigned by the Policy and 
Procedure Index in sequential order. (Examples: WM014, EH018, EM011, N009, AHD001) 

Divisions: 

AHD All Health Department 

CH Community Health 

EH Environmental Health 

EM Emergency Management 

N Nursing  

WM Weights and Measures 

4. Policies created will use the Policy Template, located within the Policies folder.  

5. Policy documents will follow a standard naming convention: PolicyNumber_Policy 
Name_LastApprovedDate  

 (Example: AHD001_Creation and Maintenance of Policies_07.26.2023) 

6. The document file path should be listed in the footer of the documents. 

7. Typed signatures may be used on policy cover sheets. 

8. The level of policy approval is based on the requirements for the policy. At a minimum, policies 
should be reviewed and approved by the Division Supervisor responsible. Some policies such 
as Nursing policies may need the approval of the Department Medical Advisor.   

9. Once a policy has been approved, it will be filed in the appropriate Division folder located within 
the Policies folder. If policy has several addendums or attachments, a folder should be created 
using the standard naming convention and all documents stored within. 

10. The frequency that policies are to be reviewed is determined by the governing authority for each 
policy. 

Review, Revision, and Sharing of Policies 

1. The policy review committee will meet at least quarterly to review and revise policies.  

2. Each Division Supervisor is responsible for ensuring that the policies for their areas are 
reviewed and/or revised within the frequency cycle. The Division Supervisor or designee will 
update the review/revision due dates in the Policy and Procedure Index located within the 
Policies folder. 

https://cityofappleton.sharepoint.com/:f:/s/HealthDepartment-Teams/EgIxinwABiVEqafP3DCaCtgB0QgtrPFM3Ad2NxaUHzVEiQ?e=y5rDMr
https://cityofappleton.sharepoint.com/:f:/s/HealthDepartment-Teams/EgIxinwABiVEqafP3DCaCtgB0QgtrPFM3Ad2NxaUHzVEiQ?e=y5rDMr
https://cityofappleton.sharepoint.com/:f:/s/HealthDepartment-Teams/EgIxinwABiVEqafP3DCaCtgB0QgtrPFM3Ad2NxaUHzVEiQ?e=y5rDMr


Appleton Health Department Policies 
 

https://cityofappleton.sharepoint.com/sites/HealthDepartment-Teams/Shared 
Documents/General/Policies/AHD Policies/AHD001_Creation and Maintenance of Policies_09.06.2023.docx 

3. Staff should not revise policies directly in the official department policies folder. A working copy 
should be created by staff updating the policy. 

(Example: AHD001_Creation and Maintenance of Policies_DRAFT) 
 

4. The updated version of the policy will be saved in the appropriate Division folder. Be sure to 
update cover sheet and the file path in the footer. Policy documents will follow a standard 
naming convention: PolicyNumber_Policy Name_LastApprovedDate  

 
(Example: AHD001_Creation and Maintenance of Policies_08.12.2023) 

5. Typed signatures may be used on policy cover sheets. 

6. The staff updating the policy will also update Policy and Procedure Index located within the 
Policies folder.  

7. Once policy update is completed and approved, the preceding official department policy version 
will be moved to the archive folder located within the Policies folder.  

8. All revised and approved policies will be distributed electronically to Health Department staff. 

9. A copy of all policies shall be maintained in accordance with the City of Appleton document 
Retention Policy. 

10. Any Health Department policy contradictory with a City of Appleton policy will be revised to be 
consistent with City of Appleton Policy. 

Definitions 
A Policy is a general written document that establishes a standard by which the institution manages its 
affairs. This written statement mandates, specifies, or prohibits conduct that enhances the institution’s 
mission, ensures coordinated compliance with applicable laws and regulations, promotes operational 
efficiency, and/or reduces institutional risk. 

A Procedure is a description of the operational processes necessary to implement policy. Procedures 
include information on the offices and positions responsible for policy implementation, instructions 
regarding how to affect the policy and how to access information. 

A Guideline is a general, non-mandatory recommendation that provides readers with helpful information 
about how to achieve a particular aim; these might include recommendations, administrative 
instructions, best practices guidance, or frameworks in which to operate. 

 

Attachments 

https://cityofappleton.sharepoint.com/:f:/s/HealthDepartment-Teams/EgIxinwABiVEqafP3DCaCtgB0QgtrPFM3Ad2NxaUHzVEiQ?e=y5rDMr
https://cityofappleton.sharepoint.com/:f:/s/HealthDepartment-Teams/EgIxinwABiVEqafP3DCaCtgB0QgtrPFM3Ad2NxaUHzVEiQ?e=y5rDMr
https://www.appleton.org/home/showpublisheddocument/24982/638019695012870000


Appleton Health Department Policies 
 

https://cityofappleton.sharepoint.com/sites/HealthDepartment-Teams/Shared 
Documents/General/Policies/AHD Policies/AHD001_Creation and Maintenance of Policies_09.06.2023.docx 

Attachment 1: Policy Template   



Appleton Health Department Policies 
 

https://cityofappleton.sharepoint.com/sites/HealthDepartment-Teams/Shared 
Documents/General/Policies/AHD Policies/AHD001_Creation and Maintenance of Policies_09.06.2023.docx 

Title:  

Policy #:  
Creation Date:  Last Approved 

Date:  Reviewed Annually 

Description:  

PHAB Domain/ 
Standard/ 
Measure (LINK): 

 

Statutory 
Authority/ 
Evidence Base/ 
Links: 

 

Author(s)/ 
Reviewer(s):  

Policy Approval Tracking 

Created/ 
Reviewed/ 
Revised Date 

Legal Services 
Approval Date 

Board of 
Health 
Approval Date 

Council 
Approval Date 

Health Officer or 
Designee Signature 
(Name/Title) 

Created     

     

     

 

Purpose 
 

Policy 
 

Definitions 
 

Attachments 

https://phaboard.org/wp-content/uploads/Standards-Measures-Initial-Accreditation-Version-2022.pdf
https://phaboard.org/wp-content/uploads/Standards-Measures-Initial-Accreditation-Version-2022.pdf
https://phaboard.org/wp-content/uploads/Standards-Measures-Initial-Accreditation-Version-2022.pdf


��������	
	�����
�	������	������������������������������������ !"#$���"%&'�(�)*+,*-.-/�,0/-�12'"03���#�4�5��6�7��4��3���#�4�6�7��4 �77#��"��"�8&3�02�8���1��5�#�����2�8���5�#��� �77#��"��"�8&9��$��:�"������$��:�"�� ;"#$���"%&9!��$#������<�#�!��$#������<�# ;"#$���"%&31='>?@0�'��4��%��#�"��8�����$�A�"%�"(�4�$���"(��"�8���B���"���5C����4����(��"��D����"7����8������%���4�"���#��<��8�#��<4E��47����##��A�"%�(�<�"D��4��$��4�FGHIJK�LM�NOPP�QM�RSTUVWX�SGM�YTZOR[W�YOZZPM�\IG[[P�]U[̂MIS�WM_S�NMMJ�NOSG�̀[QOPOaOWX�S[�SGM�ROSM�TWZ�]UM]TUOWX�b[U�SGMN[UJc� dU[̂MIS�RIGMZHPM�\M]SM̀ QMU�efeg�SGU[HXG�YTh�efeicLM�TUM�[WPh�P[[JOWX�TS�QMOWX�TQPM�S[�TẐHRS�SGM�RSTUS�V̀ MR�b[U�SGM�RIG[[P�hMTU�S[�IHS�Z[NW�[W�SGMT̀ [HWS�[b�]M[]PM�TWZ�TIVjOVMR�GT]]MWOWX�TS�SGM�MWZ�[b�SGM�ZTh�NOSG�RIG[[P�ZOR̀ORRTP�TS�gkef]̀ c�lmn�mompq�rsnt�usmno�pnv�wxyyz�{x{y�|m}�pnv�qsst~���}s�ou~��smn�usmno�}s��x{y�z{xyyLM�GTjM�e�TZZOV[WR�QMOWX�QHOPZ��[WM�TẐTIMWS�S[�FTPH̀ MS�\S�TWZ�SGM�[SGMU�[W�SGM�\��I[UWMU�[b�SGMQHOPZOWX�WMTU�SGM�U[TZ�TU[HWZ�SGM�RIG[[PcL[UJ�NOPP�RSTUS�[W�SGM�TZZOV[W�WMTU�FTPH̀ MS�\S��URS�NOSG�N[UJ�RSTUVWX�[W�SGM�[SGMU�TZZOV[W�̀OZK\M]SM̀ QMUc�TRJR�QMOWX�I[̀ ]PMSMZ�NOPP�QM�M_ITjTV[W�b[U�I[WIUMSM�b[[VWXR�TS�SGM�QMXOWWOWX�[b�SGM�]U[̂MISY[RS�W[ORM�NOPP�I[̀ M�bU[̀ �M�HO]̀ MWS�TPTÙR�NGOPM�QTIJOWX�H]��F[WIUMSM��UHIJR���[UJPO������̀�W[S�RHUM�SGTS�NM�N[HPZ�RIGMZHPM�T�I[WIUMSM�][HU�TS��kgf�ZHM�S[�SGM�SUT�I�TS�ZU[]�[�V̀ MR�bU[̀ ��kgfK�kff�MTIG�̀[UWOWXc�GMUM�̀Th�QM�V̀ MR�NGMUM�P[TZR�[b�RS[WM�N[HPZ�QM�ZMPOjMUMZ�TWZ�ZH̀ ]MZ�b[U�QTIJ�PPOWX]HU][RMRK��LM�N[HPZ�SUh�TWZ�PÒOS�SGMRM�S[�SGM��kff�V̀ M�bUT̀ M�SGM�QMRS�NM�ITWc�WIM�b[HWZTV[WR�TUM�I[̀ ]PMSMZ��NM�NOPP�QMXOW�N[UJ�[W�SGM�̀TR[WUh�NTPPR�NGOIG�RG[HPZW�S�GTjMH̀IG�[b�T�W[ORM�Ò]TIScLM�N[HPZ�PÒOS�TWh�QP[IJ�IH�WX�S[��kff�[U�T�MU�S[�GMP]�NOSG�TWh�W[ORMY[RS�[b�SGM�W[ORM�N[HPZ�QM�QTIJ�H]�TPTÙR�bU[̀ �T�b[UJPO��[U�SN[c�WIM�SGM�RSUHISHUM�OR�H]�MjMUhSGOWX�NOPP�QM�OWROZM�b[U�SGM�NOWSMU�̀[WSGR�NOSG�PO�PM�S[�W[�W[ORMÒ]TIS�S[�SGM�RHUU[HWZOWX�WMOXGQ[UG[[ZRc�����������W�SGM�R]UOWX�V̀ M�NGMW�NMTSGMU�TPP[NR�SGMUM�N[HPZ�TPR[�QM�T�RSTUS�H]�[b�M_SMUO[U�TIVjOVMRSGTS�̀Th�GTjM�R[̀ M�W[ORM�Ò]TISRc��LM�NOPP�Z[�[HU�QMRS�S[�PÒOS�W[ORM�S[�SGM��kff�V̀ M�bUT̀ Mc��MS�̀M�JW[N�Ob�SGOR�TPP�̀TJMR�RMWRM�[U�Ob���WMMZ�S[�TZZ�̀[UM�IPTUO�ITV[WRc������������ ¡¢£¤¥¦§̈�©ª«ª¬¦£­®̄°±²̄°³²­̄��́��µ ¶¶·ª§̧ª£¹°º »̧̈«¦¹¼½¤¾¿̈°§¤À®²®²�Á°�Â¤¦À¦£�Â¤ª¿



�����������	�
���
��
�
���	������
��
���
�
���
���
����������

���������������������
��
��������� !"#$$%&'�()�*+�, "!-./ !"��%0'�12�3(�&453%��$$�6'5(1'7�&8$%�7&6�9:;<=�>?@ABCD�EF�GCHCAD�I>?@ABCDFGCHCADJ@HHBCKLMFLANOPQRS=�TCUMCDU@VW�XYNYDK�Z[W�\]\̂�Z]_̀\�Xab;=�c@d?@AV�T?eKMCV�Ic@d?@AVFT?eKMCVJfLBUKFdLgOhi=�aCN@M�XF�E?BCAK�IaCN@MFE?BCAKJ@HHBCKLMFLANOPjklQiS=�>LMUemLM@B�nLeDC�o@Ae@MdC�c@d?W�XD�UeDdYDDCUW�ep�VLY�d@M�DCMU�gC�K?LDC�U@KCD�pLA�K?C�dLgHBCKC�HALqCdKW�rC�d@M�NCK�K?eD�LM�K?C�fL@AU�Lp�sC@BK?@NCMU@�LM�GCHKCgtCA�ẐK?F�XUUemLM@BBVW�ep�VLY�dLYBU�@uCMU�K?C�GCHKCgtCA�Ẑ�gCCmMN�KL�@MDrCA�@MV�vYCDmLMDpLA�K?C�fL@AUW�K?@K�rLYBU�tC�NAC@KBV�@HHACde@KCUF�w?eD�eKCg�reBB�NL�YH�@D�@M�@dmLM�eKCg�KL�tC�xLKCU�LM�tV�K?CCMmAC�fL@AU�Lp�sC@BK?F�yp�VLY�rLYBU�@BDL�HACH@AC�@�tAeCp�gCgL�UCDdAeteMN�K?C�HALqCdK�pLA�dLMKCzKW�@MU�DHCde{d@BBVW�K?C�@dmxeKV�LddYAAeMNUYAeMN�K?C�[_̂]�KL�|_]]@g�mgC�HCAeLU�K?@K�rLYBU�ACvYeAC�@�x@Ae@MdCW�rC�reBB�eMdBYUC�eK�@D�@�pLAg@B�>LMUemLM@Bo@Ae@MdC�ACvYCDK�eM�K?C�fL@AU�H@d}CKF�w?@M}D�@N@eM�pLA�AC@d?eMN�LYKF�fCDKW>?Yd}�>?@ABCD�E�GCHCADW�~AW��?�W�a�ssC@BK?���dCA����eACdKLAXHHBCKLM�sC@BK?��CH@AKgCMKZ]]�n�XHHBCKLM�GKACCKXHHBCKLMW�Ty�̀��ZZ�eACdK_��\]���̂\�[�̂^a@eM_���\]���̂\�[�\��

�
� �� ������
�������������
��
�
��
���
���	����
������
�
��
��
�������
�������	�����
�������

�
���
��
�������
����
�����
��
���
����������������������









��������	
	��
�������������	���������������������� ���!�"��#$%&'()*+�,-�.*/*(+�0%&'()*+-.*/*(+1'//)*234-3(567*8�9:;:<=<>�?@A<�BCD3@C*5'4�E-�,&)*(2�0C*5'4-,&)*(21'//)*234-3(56A�'22'F&G*42+�HI?<�JKLCMNNM,�BOPQMKMD,R�REST,OPU.�ESMCEN-/8VW��XYZ[\]̂�_�̀]a][̂b�c[b�dYeb�fdgg]Z\hY�ijk][�l�em[]khn[oaa\]hnp�g]Z\hY�e]aZ[hq]phrss�t�oaa\]hnp�̀h[]]hoaa\]hnpb�uv�wxyrrem[]khz�y{s|�}~{|�x~~fZmpz��y{s|�}~{|�x{y�
�

� �� ���������fZ�Y]��f���m\\]�[n�p��fZ�Y]���m\\]�[n�p�oaa\]hnp�n[��������u]�p]̂�Z�b�o���̂h�{~b�{s{~�rszs}�of����XYZ[\]̂�_��̀]a][̂��XYZ[\]̂�̀]a][̂�Zaa\]hnp�n[�����Z[���]�m̂���Z[���]�m̂�oaa\]hnp�n[�������Z��t����[�mp���Z����[�mp�Zaa\]hnp�n[����eZ[[mp�f���\Z���eZ[[mp��\Z��oaa\]hnp�n[����� �����d[nYm�mh]��eZp�][n�̂�opmqZ\�n¡�fv��v_�|�iut_¢�Xo�_��£iv�¤�ip�}¥{{¥{~�v��]k\Z[]��fm\\m]�Z�d[nYm�mh]��eZp�][n�̂�opmqZ\�¡n[�hY]�Xmh��n¡�oaa\]hnp���fm\\m]��Ẑ�Z\[]Z����]k\Z[]�Ẑ�Z�eZp�][n�̂�opmqZ\�]Z[\m][�hYm̂��]Z[���fm\\m]��Ẑ�\mk]p̂]�b�[]�m̂h][]�b�¦ZkkmpZh]�b�Zp��YZ��hY]�mp̂�[Zpk]�an\mk���giu_£_¢b�fm\\m]��nh�¡[]]�¡[nq�Y][�Yn�̂]�Zp��hY]p�Z�Zk�]��ZpnhY][��n����̀mpk]�fm\\m]��Ẑ�n§�n¡�Y][�a[na][h��mhY�n�h�\]ẐY�n[�q�̈ \̈]b�hYm̂�a�h�Y][�mp�¦mn\Z©np�n¡�n�[�eZp�][n�̂�opmqZ\�i[�mpZpk]̂�Zp��v�qn¦]��hnd[nYm�mh]�����mhY�Z\qn̂h�ª}ss�n¡�©k�]ĥ���¤Y]�n�p][�n¡�fm\\m]b�XZ\]�b�Zp��v�q]]h��]̂h][�Z����v��n��]\m]¦]�fm\\m]��m\\�]�a�h��n�p�hn�Z����v��m\\��]]a��n��an̂h]���� «¬��­®̄�°±±®²³́¯µ�X̀i¥g�qZp]�ijk][
�«¬°µ��́�°�®��¬¶�®«¬°±�¯®²�¬··³®��� �y{s|}~{|wwssy{s|}~{|�xrxy{s|}~{|www~fZ�Y]���m\\]�[n�p�Zaa\]hnp�n[�����Zaa\]hnp�n[�¥[]̂m�]pĥ¥an\mk]{{{�̀�uZ\p�h�̀hoaa\]hnp�uv��wxyrr� ��� ��� ���



�����������	
�	����
�	�
�
����������������



��������	
	��
�������������	�����	��	���������� �!�"����#������� !�"���$�""��%&' &�()*�+�,-.-/0/1�2344�567&36�(�'�8 ������%�#6�(�' �����%$�""��%&' &�()��9:;<=>?�@�A>B><?C�D<C�E:FC�GEHH>;=I:�JKL><�M�FN<>LIO<PBB=>IOQ�H>;=I:�F>B;<IR>QISTT�U�PBB=>IOQ�AI<>>IPBB=>IOQC�VW�XYZSSFN<>LI[�Z\T]�̂_\]̀Y__G;NQ[��Z\T]�̂_\]̀Y\Z�
�

� �� ���abcde�G;f:>g�Gh�iN==>j<OgQ�kG;f:>ghiN==>j<OgQlPBB=>IOQhO<mnopqre�st>?u;vC�Ptmt?I�\ZC�\T\_�̀[ST�PGwce�9:;<=>?�@h�A>B><?�k9:;<=>?hA>B><?l;BB=>IOQhO<mnx�y;z�Uh�{t<tNQ�ky;zh{t<tNQl;BB=>IOQhO<mnx�PQu<>;�|<;jj>kPQu<>;h|<;jj>lPBB=>IOQhO<mnx�};<v�~>gN?�k};<vh~>gN?lPBB=>IOQhO<mno���p�re�E<O:NjNI>u�F;Qm><Ot?�PQNR;=�GN==N>�GN==N>�g;?�@tI:;QN�>u�=;?I�g>>zh��A:>�gN==�QOI�=OQm><�j>�;�I:<>;I�IO�B>OB=>�O<�uOR>?�L;I>u�;QNR;=?�NQ�I:>�9NIv�O�PBB=>IOQh�� ��ww���a���������~9AJ�HtR;Q>�JKL><�
�����e�aa���ea��e�����e���e�����ooe �Z\T]̂_\]XXTTZ\T]̂_\]̀YSYZ\T]̂_\]XXX_G;f:>ghiN==>j<OgQl;BB=>IOQhO<mgggh;BB=>IOQhO<m�<>?Nu>QI?�BO=NL>\\\�A�V;=QtI�AIPBB=>IOQ�VW��XYZSS� ��� ��� ��������������������������� ¡��¢¡£¤��¥�¦§̈©�



 
02/15/2023 
 
CALEB VOIGHT 

 
RE: DECLARATION AND ORDER OF DANGEROUS ANIMAL 

 
Dear CALEB VOIGHT 
 
Please let this letter and the attached order serve as your notice, that the City of Appleton’s 
Humane Officer has formally declared your animal:  MILLIE, FEMALE, PITTBULL MIX, 
TAN/WHITE, L-,R+.N+, as a DANGEROUS ANIMAL, pursuant to the City of Appleton 
Municipal Code, Section 3-131.  
 
I have declared your ANIMAL as dangerous after conducting my investigation, which is 
summarized below:  
 
Incident # A23007158: On 02/12/2023 MILLIE was involved in unprovoked attack vs another 
human. This animal attack was determined to be an unprovoked animal attack that caused 
significant facial injuries that required immediate hospital medical aid.  The wounds suffered by 
the victim needed a total of 20 stitches to close the wounds up.  This attack was against a family 
member that was familiar with MILLIE. 
 
Due to Millie causing significant injury towards another human without provocation, MILLIE, 
FEMALE, PITTBULL MIX, TAN/WHITE, L-,R+.N+, is being declared as a dangerous animal for the 
City of Appleton. 

 
IMMEDIATE ACTION IS REQUIRED: 

 
Because your ANIMAL has been declared dangerous, you must comply with leashing, muzzling, 
and confinement requirements IMMEDIATELY, as set forth in City of Appleton Municipal Code 
Section 3-132.  You must, within thirty (30) days, comply with all other requirements of City of 
Appleton Municipal Code Section 3-132 of the dangerous declaration.  The pertinent section of 
the municipal code is attached to this document.  This order is intended to protect against injurious 
results to human beings and domestic pets caused by unprovoked attacks by your animal.   

 
APPEAL RIGHTS ARE TIME-SENSITVE: 

 
If you or any other owner or caretaker of the above-named animals wishes to contest the attached 
Order, within 72 hours YOU MUST deliver to the Health Officer a written objection to the 
order stating specific reasons for contesting the order.  Failure to timely file an objection will result 
in your forfeiture of the right to appeal this Order.   
 
 
 
 
 



The Health Deputy Director, Charles Sepers, with the City of Appleton Health Department can 
be reached at: 

Health Director - Dr. Charles Sepers 
100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI 54911 
Phone: 920-832-6433 
Fax: 920-832-5853 

Email: Charles.Sepers@appleton.org 
 

I have enclosed copies of the City of Appleton Municipal Ordinances pertaining to this matter.  
Please review and comply with City of Appleton Municipal Code Section sections 3-1, 3-2, 3-131, 
3-132, 3-133, and 3-134. 
 
If you have any further question, please contact the City of Appleton Health Department.   
Sincerely, 
 
Matt Fillebrown 
Lead CSO #9563 / Humane Officer 
Appleton Police Department  
 
Enclosures:   

Order  
City of Appleton Municipal Code Sections 3-1, 3-2, 3-131, 3-132, 3-133, 3-134 

 
CC:    CPT. Lewis - Appleton Police Department, CA Darrin Glad - Appleton City Attorney’s 

Office, and Charles Sepers - Health Department  



IN THE CITY OF APPLETON, 
OUTAGAMIE COUNTY,  
STATE OF WISCONSIN 

 
CITY OF APPLETON 
A Wisconsin Municipal Corporation 
 

Petitioner, 
v. 
 
  
CALEB VOIGHT as owner of: MILLIE, FEMALE, TERRIER MIX, TAN/WHITE, L-,R+.N+ 
 

Respondent. 
 
 

ORDER DECLARING ANIMAL DANGEROUS 
 
 
As the owner and/or caretaker of the above-named ANIMAL, you are hereby notified that the City 
of Appleton has declared that the above-named ANIMAL AS dangerous pursuant to the City of 
Appleton’s Municipal Code 3-131.   
 
Because the animal has been declared dangerous, you are further notified that you must 
immediately comply with leashing, muzzling, and confinement requirements of City of Appleton 
Municipal Code Section 3-132.  You must, within thirty (30) days, comply with all other 
requirements of City of Appleton Municipal Code Section 3-132 of the dangerous declaration.          
 
This order remains in effect, even if appealed, until modified or withdrawn.  This order is in effect 
for the lifetime of the animals.   
 
 
SO ORDERED on February 12th 3:30pm 2023              
 
 
______________________________________  
Matthew Fillebrown, Certified Humane Officer 
Appleton Police Dept. City of Appleton, WI 

 
 
I, ___________________________(respondent’s printed name), acknowledge receipt of this order 
and understand the contents of the order, including the time limits if I wish to appeal. 
 
 
Signed: ________________________________________  Date:_________________  



NEWSLETTER
O F  T H E  A P P L E T O N  P U B L I C  H E A L T H  D E P A R T M E N T  

08.2023
P U B L I C  H E A L T H

10 ESSENTIAL
PUBLIC HEALTH
SERVICES
T h e  1 0  E s s e n t i a l  P u b l i c

H e a l t h  S e r v i c e s  p r o v i d e  a

f r a m e w o r k  f o r  p u b l i c

h e a l t h  t o  p r o t e c t  a n d

p r o m o t e  t h e  h e a l t h  o f  a l l

p e o p l e  i n  a l l  c o m m u n i t i e s .

T o  a c h i e v e  e q u i t y ,  t h e

E s s e n t i a l  P u b l i c  H e a l t h

S e r v i c e s  a c t i v e l y  p r o m o t e

p o l i c i e s ,  s y s t e m s ,  a n d

o v e r a l l  c o m m u n i t y

c o n d i t i o n s  t h a t  e n a b l e

o p t i m a l  h e a l t h  f o r  a l l  a n d

s e e k  t o  r e m o v e  s y s t e m i c

a n d  s t r u c t u r a l  b a r r i e r s  t h a t

h a v e  r e s u l t e d  i n  h e a l t h

i n e q u i t i e s .  S u c h  b a r r i e r s

i n c l u d e  p o v e r t y ,  r a c i s m ,

g e n d e r  d i s c r i m i n a t i o n ,

a b l e i s m ,  a n d  o t h e r  f o r m s  o f

o p p r e s s i o n .  E v e r y o n e

s h o u l d  h a v e  a  f a i r  a n d  j u s t

o p p o r t u n i t y  t o  a c h i e v e

o p t i m a l  h e a l t h  a n d  w e l l -

b e i n g .

E a c h  m o n t h ,  t h e  A p p l e t o n  H e a l t h  D e p a r t m e n t  N e w s l e t t e r  w i l l  f e a t u r e  s t o r i e s

a b o u t  h o w  w e  a r e  a c h i e v i n g  e a c h  o f  t h e  1 0  E s s e n t i a l  P u b l i c  H e a l t h  S e r v i c e s .  T h i s

m o n t h ,  w e  w i l l  f o c u s  o n  E s s e n t i a l  P u b l i c  H e a l t h  S e r v i c e  # 1 :

A s s e s s  a n d  m o n i t o r  p o p u l a t i o n  h e a l t h  s t a t u s ,  f a c t o r s  t h a t  i n f l u e n c e  h e a l t h ,  a n d

c o m m u n i t y  n e e d s  a n d  a s s e t s .

WHAT WE ARE DOING

IN THIS ISSUE:
A s s e s s  a n d  m o n i t o r  p o p u l a t i o n  h e a l t h




C o m m u n i t y  P a r t n e r :

A A R P  &  A g e  F r i e n d l y  A p p l e t o n




M e e t  N a t

F a c i l i t a t e  e q u i t a b l e  c o m m u n i t y  w e l l b e i n g

t h r o u g h  e d u c a t i o n ,  h e a l t h  p r o m o t i o n ,  a n d

r e s p o n s e  t o  p u b l i c  h e a l t h  n e e d s .  
MISSION:

VISION: H e a l t h  f o r  a l l ,  t o g e t h e r .

T h e  A p p l e t o n  H e a l t h  D e p a r t m e n t  a s s e s s e s  a ﻿n d  m o n i t o r s  p o p u l a t i o n  h e a l t h  s t a t u s ,

f a c t o r s  t h a t  i n f l u e n c e  h e a l t h ,  a n d  c o m m u n i t y  n e e d s  a n d  a s s e t s  t h r o u g h  a  p r o c e s s

c a l l e d  a  C o m m u n i t y  H e a l t h  A s s e s s m e n t  ( C H A )  a n d  C o m m u n i t y  H e a l t h  I m p r o v e m e n t

P l a n  ( C H I P ) .  T h e  t w o  i n t e r c o n n e c t e d  p r o c e s s e s  a r e  u s e d  t o  a s s e s s  c o m m u n i t y  h e a l t h

n e e d s  a n d  d e v e l o p  s t r a t e g i e s  t o  i m p r o v e  t h e  h e a l t h  a n d  w e l l - b e i n g  o f  a  s p e c i f i c

p o p u l a t i o n  o r  c o m m u n i t y .

T h e  H e a l t h  D e p a r t m e n t ’ s  C o m m u n i t y  H e a l t h  A s s e s s m e n t  ( C H A )  i s  a  s y s t e m a t i c

e x a m i n a t i o n  o f  t h e  h e a l t h  s t a t u s ,  h e a l t h  b e h a v i o r s ,  h e a l t h  r e s o u r c e s ,  a n d  s o c i a l

d e t e r m i n a n t s  o f  h e a l t h  w i t h i n  A p p l e t o n .  T h i s  p r o c e s s  i n v o l v e s  g a t h e r i n g  d a t a  f r o m

a  v a r i e t y  o f  s o u r c e s ,  s u c h  a s  h e a l t h  s u r v e y s ,  v i t a l  s t a t i s t i c s ,  c o m m u n i t y  f o c u s

g r o u p s ,  a n d  e x i s t i n g  h e a l t h  r e p o r t s .  T h e  C H A  a s s e s s m e n t  h e l p s  i d e n t i f y  h e a l t h

i s s u e s  a n d  d i s p a r i t i e s  a f f e c t i n g  t h e  c o m m u n i t y ,  a s  w e l l  a s  s t r e n g t h s  a n d  a s s e t s  t h a t

c a n  b e  b u i l t  u p o n .  T h e  u l t i m a t e  g o a l  i s  t o  u n d e r s t a n d  t h e  h e a l t h  n e e d s  a n d

p r i o r i t i e s  o f  t h e  A p p l e t o n  r e s i d e n t s  t o  g u i d e  t h e  d e v e l o p m e n t  o f  t a r g e t e d

i n t e r v e n t i o n s  a n d  p r o g r a m s .

O n c e  t h e  C o m m u n i t y  H e a l t h  A s s e s s m e n t  i s  c o m p l e t e d  a n d  k e y  h e a l t h  i s s u e s  a r e

i d e n t i f i e d ,  a  C o m m u n i t y  H e a l t h  I m p r o v e m e n t  P l a n  ( C H I P )  i s  d e v e l o p e d .  W e  w i l l

f o c u s  o n  t h e  A p p l e t o n  H e a l t h  D e p a r t m e n t ’ s  C H I P  i n  a n  u p c o m i n g  i s s u e  o f  o u r

n e w s l e t t e r .

R e c e n t  C H A  a c t i v i t i e s  c o n d u c t e d  b y  t h e  A p p l e t o n  H e a l t h  D e p a r t m e n t  i n c l u d e  t h e

H o m e l e s s n e s s  S u m m i t ,  P o i n t - i n - T i m e  C o u n t ,  a n d  A g e - F r i e n d l y  S u r v e y .  B y  e n g a g i n g

t h e  c o m m u n i t y  i n  t h e s e  p r o c e s s e s ,  p u b l i c  h e a l t h  o f f i c i a l s  c a n  e n s u r e  t h a t  t h e i r

e f f o r t s  a r e  t a i l o r e d  t o  t h e  u n i q u e  n e e d s  o f  t h e  p o p u l a t i o n  t h e y  s e r v e  a n d  f o s t e r

s u s t a i n a b l e ,  l o n g - t e r m  h e a l t h  i m p r o v e m e n t s .

https://www.cdc.gov/publichealthgateway/publichealthservices/essentialhealthservices.html


RESOURCES

A g e  F r i e n d l y  A p p l e t o n  S u r v e y

AARP & AGE FRIENDLY APPLETON
A A R P  ( f o r m e r l y  k n o w n  a s  t h e  A m e r i c a n

A s s o c i a t i o n  o f  R e t i r e d  P e r s o n s )  i s  a  n o n p r o f i t

o r g a n i z a t i o n  t h a t  f o c u s e s  o n  e m p o w e r i n g  a n d

a d v o c a t i n g  f o r  o l d e r  a d u l t s .  I n  2 0 2 2 ,  A A R P

d e s i g n a t e d  A p p l e t o n  a s  a n  " A g e  F r i e n d l y

C o m m u n i t y "  b e c a u s e  w e  h a v e  m a d e  a  c o m m i t m e n t

t o  c r e a t i n g  a n  i n c l u s i v e  a n d  s u p p o r t i v e

e n v i r o n m e n t  f o r  r e s i d e n t s  o f  a l l  a g e s ,  p a r t i c u l a r l y

o l d e r  a d u l t s .  F o l l o w i n g  t h i s  d e s i g n a t i o n  t h e  A g e -

F r i e n d l y  A p p l e t o n  I n i t i a t i v e  b e g a n .  

T h e  A g e  F r i e n d l y  A p p l e t o n  I n i t i a t i v e  a i m s  t o

c r e a t e  a  c o m m u n i t y  t h a t  i s  s u p p o r t i v e  a n d

i n c l u s i v e  o f  o l d e r  a d u l t s  b y  i d e n t i f y i n g  t h e i r  n e e d s

a n d  p r e f e r e n c e s  a n d  i n t e g r a t i n g  t h e m  i n t o  t h e

c i t y ' s  p l a n n i n g  a n d  p o l i c i e s .  A A R P  i n  p a r t n e r s h i p

w i t h  t h e  A p p l e t o n  H e a l t h  D e p a r t m e n t  d e v e l o p e d

t h e  A g e  F r i e n d l y  A p p l e t o n  S u r v e y  t o  l e a r n  m o r e

a b o u t  a n d  p r i o r i t i z e  t h e  n e e d s  a n d  p r e f e r e n c e s  o f

o l d e r  a d u l t s  i n  t h e i r  p l a n n i n g  a n d  d e c i s i o n - m a k i n g

p r o c e s s e s ,  w i t h  t h e  g o a l  o f  p r o m o t i n g  h e a l t h y

a g i n g  a n d  i m p r o v i n g  t h e  q u a l i t y  o f  l i f e  f o r  a l l

r e s i d e n t s .

T h e  s u r v e y  o p e n e d  i n  e a r l y  J u n e  a n d  i s  a n t i c i p a t e d

t o  c l o s e  i n  l a t e  A u g u s t .  S u r v e y  t o p i c s  i n c l u d e

a c c e s s i b l e  h o u s i n g ,  t r a n s p o r t a t i o n ,  h e a l t h  c a r e ,

s o c i a l  e n g a g e m e n t ,  a n d  o t h e r  f a c t o r s  t h a t

c o n t r i b u t e  t o  a g i n g  w e l l .  P r o m o t i o n  a n d

d i s t r i b u t i o n  o f  t h e  s u r v e y  h a s  b e e n  b o t h  o n l i n e

a n d  a n d  c o m m u n i t y  g a t h e r i n g  s p a c e s  a n d  e v e n t s .  

 B y  p r i o r i t i z i n g  t h e  n e e d s  o f  o l d e r  a d u l t s ,  a g e -

f r i e n d l y  c o m m u n i t i e s  a r e  n o t  o n l y  h e l p i n g  t h e i r

o l d e r  r e s i d e n t s  t o  t h r i v e ,  b u t  a l s o  b u i l d i n g  a

s t r o n g e r  a n d  m o r e  v i b r a n t  c o m m u n i t y  f o r

e v e r y o n e .

COMMUNITY PARTNERS MEET NAT

N a t a l i e  A n d e r s o n  ( s h e / h e r ) ,

f o c u s e d  h e r  N E W  A H E C  s u m m e r

i n t e r n s h i p  w i t h  t h e  A p p l e t o n

H e a l t h  D e p a r t m e n t  o n  t h e

p r o m o t i o n  a n d  d i s t r i b u t i o n  o f  t h e

A p p l e t o n  A g e  F r i e n d l y  S u r v e y .  

 S h e  m e e t  w i t h  c o m m u n i t y

p a r t n e r s  t o  s h a r e  r e s o u r c e s  a n d

s t r a t e g i e s ,  i m p r o v e  c o m m u n i t y

e n g a g e m e n t .  a n d  t o  e x p a n d

a c c e s s  o f  t h e  A g e  F r i e n d l y  S u r v e y

t o  m o r e  A p p l e t o n  r e s i d e n t s .

N a t a l i e  i s  a  p r e - m e d  s t u d e n t  a t

L a w r e n c e  U n i v e r s i t y  h e a d i n g  i n t o

h e r  J u n i o r  y e a r .   S h e  i s  s t u d y i n g

C h e m i s t r y  a n d  B i o c h e m i s t r y

w h i l e  m i n o r i n g  i n  F r e n c h  a n d

c o m p e t i n g  w i t h  t h e  c r o s s -

c o u n t r y  a n d  t r a c k  t e a m .   N a t a l i e

e n j o y s  s e e i n g  t h e  i m p a c t  t h a t

r e s e a r c h  i n  C h e m i s t r y  a n d

B i o c h e m i s t r y  h a s  i n  r e a l  w o r l d

a p p l i c a t i o n s .

N a t a l i e ' s  i n t e r e s t  i n  h e a l t h  

 e x t e n d s  b e y o n d  t h e  l e c t u r e  h a l l

a n d  l a b .   S h e  c o m p l e t e d  a n

E n v i r o n m e n t a l i s m  i n t e r n s h i p  l a s t

s u m m e r  a n d  w h e n  s h e  i s  n o t

s t u d y i n g  o r  w o r k i n g  y o u  m a y  f i n d

h e r  c a m p i n g ,  h i k i n g ,  b a c k p a c k i n g ,

g a r d e n i n g ,  a n d  l o n g - d i s t a n c e

r u n n i n g .  

BOARD OF HEALTH
CALENDAR

T h e  A g e  F r i e n d l y  A p p l e t o n

S u r v e y  i s  a v a i l a b l e  o n l i n e  i n

E n g l i s h ,  a n d  a v a i l a b l e  i n

p r i n t e d / p d f  f o r m a t  i n  E n g l i s h ,

H m o n g ,  a n d  S p a n i s h .

C D C - 1 0  E s s e n t i a l  P u b l i c

H e a l t h  S e r v i c e s  - F u l l

A A R P

https://www.appleton.org/residents/health/age-friendly-appleton
https://www.appleton.org/
https://www.facebook.com/appletonhealthdepartment/
https://www.appleton.org/residents/health
https://www.appleton.org/residents/health/contact-us
https://www.linkedin.com/company/appleton-health-department?original_referer=
https://www.instagram.com/appletonhealthdept/
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx
https://phnci.org/uploads/resource-files/EPHS-English.pdf
https://local.aarp.org/appleton-wi/


NEWSLETTER
O F  T H E  A P P L E T O N  P U B L I C  H E A L T H  D E P A R T M E N T  

09.2023
P U B L I C  H E A L T H

10 ESSENTIAL
PUBLIC HEALTH
SERVICES
T h e  1 0  E s s e n t i a l  P u b l i c

H e a l t h  S e r v i c e s  p r o v i d e  a

f r a m e w o r k  f o r  p u b l i c

h e a l t h  t o  p r o t e c t  a n d

p r o m o t e  t h e  h e a l t h  o f  a l l

p e o p l e  i n  a l l  c o m m u n i t i e s .

T o  a c h i e v e  e q u i t y ,  t h e

E s s e n t i a l  P u b l i c  H e a l t h

S e r v i c e s  a c t i v e l y  p r o m o t e

p o l i c i e s ,  s y s t e m s ,  a n d

o v e r a l l  c o m m u n i t y

c o n d i t i o n s  t h a t  e n a b l e

o p t i m a l  h e a l t h  f o r  a l l  a n d

s e e k  t o  r e m o v e  s y s t e m i c

a n d  s t r u c t u r a l  b a r r i e r s  t h a t

h a v e  r e s u l t e d  i n  h e a l t h

i n e q u i t i e s .  S u c h  b a r r i e r s

i n c l u d e  p o v e r t y ,  r a c i s m ,

g e n d e r  d i s c r i m i n a t i o n ,

a b l e i s m ,  a n d  o t h e r  f o r m s  o f

o p p r e s s i o n .  E v e r y o n e

s h o u l d  h a v e  a  f a i r  a n d  j u s t

o p p o r t u n i t y  t o  a c h i e v e

o p t i m a l  h e a l t h  a n d  w e l l -

b e i n g .

E a c h  m o n t h ,  t h e  A p p l e t o n  H e a l t h  D e p a r t m e n t  N e w s l e t t e r  w i l l  f e a t u r e  s t o r i e s

a b o u t  h o w  w e  a r e  a c h i e v i n g  e a c h  o f  t h e  1 0  E s s e n t i a l  P u b l i c  H e a l t h  S e r v i c e s .

T h i s  m o n t h ,  w e  w i l l  f o c u s  o n  E s s e n t i a l  P u b l i c  H e a l t h  S e r v i c e  # 4 :  S t r e n g t h e n ,

s u p p o r t ,  a n d  m o b i l i z e  c o m m u n i t i e s  a n d  p a r t n e r s h i p s  t o  i m p r o v e  h e a l t h .

WHAT WE ARE DOING
E v e r y  y e a r  i n  t h e  U n i t e d  S t a t e s  t h e  m o n t h  o f  S e p t e m b e r  i s  N a t i o n a l

P r e p a r e d n e s s  M o n t h .  N a t i o n a l  P r e p a r e d n e s s  M o n t h  i s  t h e  t i m e  t o  r a i s e

a w a r e n e s s  a b o u t  t h e  i m p o r t a n c e  o f  e m e r g e n c y  p r e p a r e d n e s s  a n d  t o  e n c o u r a g e

o u r  c o m m u n i t y  t o  t a k e  s i m p l e  s t e p s  t o  b e  b e t t e r  p r e p a r e d  f o r  a n y  e m e r g e n c y

a n d  d i s a s t e r  t h a t  m i g h t  a f f e c t  t h e  C i t y  o f  A p p l e t o n .

N a t i o n a l  P r e p a r e d n e s s  M o n t h  i s  s p o n s o r e d  b y  t h e  F e d e r a l  E m e r g e n c y

M a n a g e m e n t  A g e n c y  ( F E M A )  w i t h i n  t h e  U . S .  D e p a r t m e n t  o f  H o m e l a n d  S e c u r i t y .

D u r i n g  t h i s  m o n t h ,  t h e  A p p l e t o n  H e a l t h  D e p a r t m e n t ,  w i t h  g u i d a n c e  f r o m

F E M A ,  p r o v i d e s  i n f o r m a t i o n ,  r e s o u r c e s ,  a n d  g u i d a n c e  o n  h o w  t o  c r e a t e

e m e r g e n c y  c o m m u n i c a t i o n  p l a n s ,  r e c e i v e  a l e r t s  f o r  p o t e n t i a l  h a z a r d s ,  a n d

a s s e m b l e  e m e r g e n c y  k i t s .  U t i l i z i n g  t h e  d e p a r t m e n t ’ s  s o c i a l  m e d i a  p l a t f o r m s ,

r e s o u r c e s  a r e  s h a r e d  w i t h  t h e  w h o l e  c o m m u n i t y .  

E a c h  y e a r  a  t h e m e  i s  c h o s e n  f o r  N a t i o n a l  P r e p a r e d n e s s  M o n t h  f o c u s i n g ;  t h e

t h e m e  f o r  2 0 2 3  i s  P r e p a r i n g  O l d e r  A d u l t s  f o r  D i s a s t e r s .  P r e p a r e d n e s s  i n c l u d e s

IN THIS ISSUE:
S t r e n g t h e n ,  s u p p o r t ,  a n d  m o b i l i z e

c o m m u n i t i e s  a n d  p a r t n e r s h i p s




C o m m u n i t y  P a r t n e r :

A p p l e t o n  R e s i d e n t s




M e e t  C a s s i d y

F a c i l i t a t e  e q u i t a b l e  c o m m u n i t y  w e l l b e i n g

t h r o u g h  e d u c a t i o n ,  h e a l t h  p r o m o t i o n ,  a n d

r e s p o n s e  t o  p u b l i c  h e a l t h  n e e d s .  
MISSION:

VISION: H e a l t h  f o r  a l l ,  t o g e t h e r .

P r e p a r e d n e s s  t h r o u g h  e d u c a t i o n
 i s  l e s s  c o s t l y  t h a n  

l e a r n i n g  t h r o u g h  t r a g e d y .
–  M a x  M a y f i e l d ,  m e t e o r o l o g i s t

( a n d  S t r a n g e r  T h i n g s )

f a m i l y  c o m m u n i c a t i o n  p l a n s ,

c o m m u n i t y  i n v o l v e m e n t ,

d i s a s t e r  s u p p l y  k i t s ,  a n d

m o r e .  T h e  g o a l  i s  t o

e n c o u r a g e  o u r  c o m m u n i t i e s

a n d  r e s i d e n t s  t o  t a k e  s i m p l e

s t e p s  t o  i m p r o v e  t h e i r

r e a d i n e s s  f o r  d i s a s t e r s  s u c h

a s  n a t u r a l  d i s a s t e r s ,  p o w e r

o u t a g e s ,  o r  m e d i c a l  c r i s e s .

https://www.cdc.gov/publichealthgateway/publichealthservices/essentialhealthservices.html


RESOURCES
P l a n  A h e a d  f o r  D i s a s t e r s  a t  R e a d y . g o v

CONNECTIONS CREATE COMMUNITY RESILIENCE
D u r i n g  a n  e m e r g e n c y ,  b u s i n e s s e s ,  n o n -

p r o f i t s ,  a n d  r e s i d e n t s  b e c o m e  i m p o r t a n t  a n d

e f f e c t i v e  c o m m u n i t y  p a r t n e r s .  N a t i o n a l

P r e p a r e d n e s s  M o n t h  s e r v e s  a s  a  r e m i n d e r

t h a t  b e i n g  p r e p a r e d  i s  a  s h a r e d  r e s p o n s i b i l i t y

w i t h i n  o u r  c o m m u n i t y  a n d  t h a t  e v e r y  s t e p

t a k e n  g r e a t l y  i m p r o v e s  o u r  a b i l i t y  t o  r e s p o n d

e f f e c t i v e l y  t o  e m e r g e n c i e s  a n d  p r o t e c t  l i v e s .

S m a l l  s t e p s  a n y  r e s i d e n t  c a n  t a k e  t o  b e c o m e

m o r e  p r e p a r e d  a n d  e f f e c t i v e  i n  d i s a s t e r s

i n c l u d e  c r e a t i n g  a  c o m m u n i c a t i o n  p l a n  w i t h

y o u r  f a m i l y ,  b u i l d i n g  a n  e m e r g e n c y  k i t ,

g e t t i n g  i n v o l v e d  a s  a  v o l u n t e e r  i n  y o u r

c o m m u n i t y ,  o r  s i m p l y  m a k i n g  s u r e  y o u  h a v e  a

w a y  t o  r e c e i v e  e m e r g e n c y  a l e r t s .

E n c o u r a g i n g  a n d  e d u c a t i n g  r e s i d e n t s  t o  t a k e

p r e p a r e d n e s s  s t e p s  c r e a t e s  a  m o r e  r e s i l i e n t

c o m m u n i t y .   

H e a l t h  d e p a r t m e n t s  f a c i l i t a t e  p a r t n e r s h i p s

b e t w e e n  p u b l i c  a n d  p r i v a t e  s t a k e h o l d e r s .

T h e s e  p a r t n e r s h i p s  e n s u r e  a  v a r i e t y  o f

e x p e r t s  a n d  r e s o u r c e s  t h a t  c a n  b e  m o b i l i z e d

d u r i n g  e m e r g e n c i e s .  C o l l a b o r a t i o n  e f f o r t s

w i t h  l o c a l  o r g a n i z a t i o n s ,  c o m m u n i t y  l e a d e r s ,

a n d  s t a k e h o l d e r s  a l s o  h e l p  b u i l d  r e s i l i e n c e

w i t h i n  c o m m u n i t i e s .  B u i l d i n g  t h a t  r e s i l i e n c e

i n c l u d e s  i d e n t i f y i n g  v u l n e r a b i l i t i e s  a n d  a s s i s t

i n  t h e  d e v e l o p m e n t  o f  p l a n s  t h a t  a d d r e s s

s p e c i f i c  n e e d s  a n d  c h a l l e n g e s .  B y  f o s t e r i n g  a

c u l t u r e  o f  c o n t i n u e d  p a r t n e r s h i p

d e v e l o p m e n t  a n d  r e s i l i e n c e ,  t h e  A p p l e t o n

H e a l t h  D e p a r t m e n t  i s  r e a d y  t o  r e s p o n d  a n d

r e c o v e r  m o r e  s u c c e s s f u l l y  f r o m  a n y  d i s a s t e r .

COMMUNITY PARTNERS MEET CASSIDY

C a s s i d y  W a l s h  ( s h e / h e r )  h a s  s e r v e d  i n

t h e  r o l e  o f  E m e r g e n c y  M a n a g e m e n t

C o o r d i n a t o r  f o r  t h e  C i t y  o f  A p p l e t o n

s i n c e  A u g u s t  2 0 1 9 .   C a s s i d y

c o o r d i n a t e s  a n d  s u p p o r t s  t h e  C i t y  o f

A p p l e t o n  a n d  p a r t n e r i n g  o r g a n i z a t i o n s

i n  p l a n n i n g ,  p r e p a r i n g ,  a n d  t r a i n i n g  f o r

p o t e n t i a l  n a t u r a l  a n d  h u m a n - m a d e

d i s a s t e r s .

" Y o u  c a n ' t  m a n a g e  a n  e m e r g e n c y . . .  b u t  I

m a n a g e  h o w  w e  [ A p p l e t o n ]  r e s p o n d .  I ' d

r a t h e r  d i s a s t e r s  d i d n ' t  h a p p e n  b u t  I

l o v e  t r a i n i n g  a n d  e x e r c i s e s  a n d  f i n d i n g

w a y s  t o  g e t  b e t t e r  [ a t  r e s p o n d i n g  i n  a n d

r e c o v e r i n g  f r o m  e m e r g e n c i e s ] .  T h e r e  i s

n e v e r  a n  e n d  t o  i m p r o v i n g . "

T h e  e m e r g e n c y  t r a i n i n g  e x e r c i s e s

c o o r d i n a t e d  b y  C a s s i d y  o f t e n  i n c l u d e

p a r t i c i p a n t s  w i t h  l e s s  e m e r g e n c y

e x p e r i e n c e  w h o  m a y  r e s p o n d  d u r i n g  a

d i s a s t e r .  T r a i n i n g  e x e r c i s e s  a r e

d e s i g n e d  t o  a d d r e s s  a  v a r i e t y  o f

e v e n t s  a n d  C a s s i d y  u s e s  e x e r c i s e

o u t c o m e s  t o  m a k e  r e c o m m e n d a t i o n s

f o r  e f f e c t i v e  p r e p a r e d n e s s .  “ I  a l w a y s

k n e w  I  w a n t e d  t o  d o  s o m e t h i n g  t h a t

h e l p e d  o t h e r  p e o p l e .  I  d o n ’ t  l i k e  t o

s e e  h a r d  t i m e s  h i t  o n  p e o p l e  a n d  i f

t h e r e ’ s  s o m e t h i n g  I  c a n  d o  t o  h e l p

s o m e o n e ,  t h a t ’ s  w h a t  I  w a n t  t o  d o . ”  

C a s s i d y  e n j o y s  s p e n d i n g  t i m e  w i t h  h e r

f a m i l y ,  c a m p i n g ,  f i s h i n g ,  h i k i n g ,

v o l l e y b a l l ,  d a r t s ,  r e a d i n g ,  a n d  p a i n t i n g .

BOARD OF HEALTH
CALENDAR

U s e  t h e  f i v e  " P " s  o f  e v a c u a t i o n :

P e o p l e ,  P i l l s ,  P a p e r s ,  P u r s e .  P e t s ,

t o  e v a c u a t e  q u i c k l y .

C D C - 1 0  E s s e n t i a l  P u b l i c

H e a l t h  S e r v i c e s  - F u l l

https://www.ready.gov/
https://www.appleton.org/
https://www.facebook.com/appletonhealthdepartment/
https://www.appleton.org/residents/health
https://www.appleton.org/residents/health/contact-us
https://www.linkedin.com/company/appleton-health-department?original_referer=
https://www.instagram.com/appletonhealthdept/
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx
https://phnci.org/uploads/resource-files/EPHS-English.pdf


Approved Noise Variances July-Dec 2023 Revised 8/25/23

Saturday, July 15, 2023 4:00pm-9:00pm 1025 N Badger Avenue Dancehall DJ
Amplified 
Music/Sound

Reginald Desamour (920) 702-7009 7/6/2023

Saturday, July 15, 2023 6:00pm-11:00pm 1206 E. Woodland Avenue Private Party Live Music James Buck (920) 224-3936 7/6/2023

Saturday, August 19, 2023 10:00am-10:00pm 222 East Fremont Street Sacred Heart Parish Fest
Amplified 
Music/Sound

Dave Erickson/ Mark 
VandenLinden

(920) 739-7287/ 
(920) 419-5002 7/6/2023

Sunday, August 20, 2023 10:00am-10:00pm 222 East Fremont Street Sacred Heart Parish Fest
Amplified 
Music/Sound

Dave Erickson/ Mark 
VandenLinden

(920) 739-7287/ 
(920) 419-5002 7/6/2023

Monday, August 21, 2023 10:00am-3:00pm 222 East Fremont Street Sacred Heart Parish Fest
Amplified 
Music/Sound

Dave Erickson/ Mark 
VandenLinden

(920) 739-7287/ 
(920) 419-5002 7/6/2023

Sunday, September 10, 2023 11:00am-4:00pm 1025 N Badger Avenue Summer Sendoff Live Music Reginald Desamour (920) 702-7009 7/6/2023

Tuesday, September 12, 2023 5:00pm-9:00pm Houdini Plaza, 100 W Lawrence Street
Rise Together Day 10 Year 
Anniversary

Amplified 
Music/Sound

Nadine Machlovech (920) 382-9772 7/6/2023

Sunday, September 17, 2023 1:00pm-4:00pm Erb Park, 1800 N Morrison Street International Peace Day
Amplified 
Music/Sound

John Polakowski (920) 427-7776 7/6/2023

Friday, September 29, 2023 3pm-9:30pm Houdini Plaza, 100 W Lawrence Street License to Cruise® Live Music Aimee Herrick 920 740 9309 7/6/2023

Friday, September 29, 2023 4:00pm-10:00pm 1025 N Badger Avenue Octoberfest Pre-Party Live Music Reginald Desamour (920) 702-7009 7/6/2023

Friday, October 6, 2023 5:30pm-6:30pm
Approved Event Route: Meade Pool to 
Appleton East High School

Appleton East Homecoming 
Parade

Amplified 
Music/Sound

Tim Zachow (920) 832-6212 7/6/2023

Saturday, October 7, 2023 8:00am-12:00pm Telulah Park, 1300 E Newberry Street
Making Strides Against Breast 
Cancer of the Fox Valley

Amplified 
Music/Sound

Megan Schreck (920) 526-5232 7/6/2023

Saturday, July 15, 2023 11:00am-10:00pm 1703 Lorain Ct Private Party
Amplified 
Music/Sound

Maria Antonia Rodriguez Casado (920) 264-3970 7/13/2023

Saturday, July 15, 2023 3:00pm-10:00pm 424 E McArthur Street Private Party Crowd Noise Katy Eder (920)225-9382 7/13/2023

Sunday, July 23, 2023 7:30pm-10:30pm 317 N Appleton St Missfits Tavern
Amplified 
Music/Sound

Julia Blair (262) 237-2250 7/13/2023

Saturday, August 12, 2023 4:00pm-5:00pm Jones Park, 301 W Lawrence Street African Heritage Back to School
Amplified 
Music/Sound

Dr. Sabrina Robins (920) 475-2486 7/13/2023

Sunday, August 13, 2023 12:00pm-5:00pm Jones Park, 301 W Lawrence Street African Heritage Back to School
Amplified 
Music/Sound

Dr. Sabrina Robins (920) 475-2486 7/13/2023

Friday, October 6, 2023 4:00pm-4:45pm
Approved Route: Pierce Park to Xavier 
High School via Prospect Avenue 

Xavier Highschool Homecoming 
Parade

Live Music Mike Mauthe (920) 540-3550 7/13/2023

Sunday, August 27, 2023 12:00pm-5:00pm 203 N Richmond St Back to School Block Party Live Music Mandy Davenport (920) 268-5701 7/20/2023

Sunday, October 1, 2023 3:00pm-6:00pm 1937 E John St H&K's Car Show Other: Car Noise Hank Grishaber (920) 850-6069 7/20/2023



Approved Noise Variances July-Dec 2023 Revised 8/25/23

Saturday, October 7, 2023 12:00pm-4:00pm Memorial Park, 1620 E Witzke Blvd Skeleton Skamper
Amplfied 
Music/Sound

Jonathon Stavast (262) 226-9075 7/20/2023

Wednesday, August 2, 2023 5:30pm-10:00pm 115 S State Street McFleshmans Live Music Live Music Alyse Lincoln (920) 850-6654 7/28/2023

Saturday, September 9, 2023 5:00pm-7:30pm 404 W Lawrence Street St. Joe's Fall Festival
Amplified 
Music/Sound

Mandy Clemons (920) 202-4085 7/28/2023

Wednesday, August 9, 2023 7:00pm-10:00pm 317 N Appleton St Missfits Tavern
Amplified 
Music/Sound

Julia Blair (262) 237-2250 8/4/2023

Sunday, August 27, 2023 12:00pm-5:00pm 203 N Richmond St Back to School Block Party
Amplified 
Music/Sound

Kristen Gondek (920) 815-9487 8/4/2023

Friday, August 18, 2023 4:00pm-7:00pm 160 S Badger Ave City Mural Unveiling
Amplified 
Music/Sound

Megan Vande Hey (920) 574-3449 8/15/2023

Tuesday, September 5, 2023 2:30pm-4:30pm 711 E Boldt Way Lawrence Presidents Welcome
Amplified 
Music/Sound

Derek Diehl (608) 367-2430 8/15/2023

Saturday, September 9, 2023 7:00pm-10:00pm 501 E College Ave Blu's Welcome Event
Amplified 
Music/Sound

Megan DuFrane-Groose (920) 832-6698 8/15/2023

Friday, September 29, 2023 3:00pm-9:00pm Pierce Park, 1035 W Prospect Ave
Lawrence School of Drumming 
Recital

Live Music David Lawrence (920) 428-9622 8/18/2023

Sunday, August 27, 2023 3:00pm-5:00pm 211 S Walnut Street Fox River House
Amplified 
Music/Sound

Kelley Stiles/ Matt Ricks (920) 216-3992 8/18/2023

Friday, September 22, 2023 5:00pm-7:00pm 318 E Brewster Street
2nd Annual Latinx and Hispanic 
Heritage 5K Run and Walk

Amplified 
Music/Sound

Keila Cutie (920) 707-0032 8/18/2023

Saturday, October 7, 2023 8:00am-2:00pm 2037 N Elinor Street
AASD’s Annual Tough Kids 
Challenge

Amplified 
Music/Sound

Mikki Duran (920) 213-3300 8/18/2023

Saturday, October 7, 2023 1:00pm-6:00pm 115 S State Street Fox Valley Lagerfest Live Music Alyse Lincoln (920) 850-6654 8/18/2023

Wednesday, September 27, 2023 4:30pm-5:30pm 5000 N Ballard Road
Appleton North Homecoming 
Parade

Live Music/Amplified 
Sound

Nate Werner (920) 740-0643 8/25/2023

Saturday, September 16, 2023 12:00pm-4:00pm 1024 South Olde Oneida Street Flourish Spa Grand Opening
Amplified 
Music/Sound

Mariah Knox (920) 851-7771 8/25/2023

Saturday, September 9, 2023 11:00am-6:00pm 1025 W Prospect Avenue Latino Fest
Live Music/Amplified 
Sound

Ernesto Gonzalez Jr (920) 574-4267 8/25/2023


	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_06.14.23_BoardOfHealth_MeetingMinutes
	0002_1_9-R-23 mental health awareness
	0003_1_Article XVIII Tattoo and Body Piercing Establishments Memo
	0003_2_Article XVIII Tattoo and Body Piercing Establishments Ordinance Change Prosposal
	0004_1_0884 - BoH Memo
	0004_2_Chapter 11 Manufactured Homes Ordinance Update
	ARTICLE I.  IN GENERAL

	0005_1_AHD001_Creation and Maintenance of Policies_09.06.2023
	0006_1_2023-2024_Conditional Noise Variance Request_Boldt
	0007_1_08.22.23_DangerousAnimalDeclaration_Millie
	08.22.23_DangerousAnimalDeclaration_Millie.pdf
	Mail - Megan A.pdf
	2Mail - Megan A.pdf
	02.12.23_DangerousAnimalDeclaration_Millie.pdf
	I have enclosed copies of the City of Appleton Municipal Ordinances pertaining to this matter.  Please review and comply with City of Appleton Municipal Code Section sections 3-1, 3-2, 3-131, 3-132, 3-133, and 3-134.
	If you have any further question, please contact the City of Appleton Health Department.
	Lead CSO #9563 / Humane Officer


	0008_1_August_2023_Newsletter_0
	0009_1_September_2023_Newsletter_0
	0010_1_NoiseVariances_BoH_Sept
	July-Dec 2023


